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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESNSEBERBAE[{N

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Eav Yin (alias Duong Khai Nhon), aged 69, is the founder of the
Company and a member of Chaozhou Committee of Guangdong
Province of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (&
REBMABIHZE) and was appointed as an Executive Director and
the Chairman of the Company on 22nd November 2006. He is also
the Chairman of the remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Eav
Yin is a Cambodian Chinese and prior to his establishing of a Hong
Kong company in 1968 as an importing agent for watch distribution
business in Cambodia, had extensive experience of distributing
watches in Cambodia and Vietnam. Mr. Eav Yin is the father of Mr.
Eav Ming Keong, Kinson and the spouse of Mdm. Lam Kim Phung, a
controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr. Eav Yin is a director and
a controlling shareholder of Century Hero International Limited, which
is a controlling shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Eav Ming Keong, Kinson, aged 34, holds a Bachelor of Arts
degree in Interior Design and Technology and a Master of Arts degree
in Art, Design and Visual Culture from the London Guildhall University.
After graduation, Mr. Eav Ming Keong, Kinson has practiced in an
architecture firm in London for 2 years. Mr. Eav Ming Keong, Kinson is
a son of Mr. Eav Yin. He was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Company on 22nd November 2006.

Mr. Au Shiu Leung, Alex, aged 44, has held positions as chief
financial officer and financial controller of certain Hong Kong listed
companies. He was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company on 11th January 2007 and as company secretary on 19th
April 2007. He was previously employed by the Company from 1995
to 1997 and was its company secretary from 1996 to 1997. Mr. Au is
a member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales and an associate of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He holds a Bachelor of Commerce (Accounting) degree
with honours from the University of Birmingham.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lai Si Ming, aged 51, is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors and an associate member of the Royal Institution
of Chartered Surveyors. He was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on 8th August 1998. He is also the
chairman of the audit committee and a member of the remuneration
committee of the Company. Mr. Lai was elected as the Vice Chairman,
General Practice Division of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
during the years from 2001 to 2003. Mr. Lai has been practicing as a
professional surveyor since 1983 and has considerable experience in
the property field. Mr. Lai holds a Master Degree of Business
Administration from Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lai held
directorship as Independent Non-Executive Director of The Sun’s
Group Limited during the years from 2002 to 2003.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline, aged 39, graduated with LLB (Hons)
at King’s College, London University, UK in 1992, and was admitted to
both the UK Bar (Middle Temple, UK) and the Hong Kong Bar in 1993.
Ms. Wong is a practicing barrister in Hong Kong. She was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director of the Company on 16th
December 2006. She is also a member of the audit committee and the
remuneration committee of the Company.

Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent, aged 39, has over 18 years experience
in accounting and auditing and is the sole proprietor of a firm of
Certified Public Accountants practicing in Hong Kong. Mr. Lee is an
associate member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales, a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. He holds a Master Degree in Corporate Finance
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 16th December
2006. He is also a member of the audit committee and the
remuneration committee of the Company.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Jonathan Darracott, aged 43, holds a BA Hons degree in
jewellery and silversmithing design and is a graduate member of the
British Horological Institute, the Antiquarian Horological Society and a
Freeman of the Worshipful Company of Clockmakers. He joined the
Group in March 2007 as general manager responsible for the Group’s
Juvenia operations and business development. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Darracott has worked for a major watch company in
London and for twelve years in Sotheby’s international auction house
where he became the head for the European Watch department. He
was involved in setting two then world records: the most expensive
watch and the most expensive horological collection ever sold at
auction.

Mr. Poon Kwok Sing, Sammy, aged 50, joined the Group in 1989.
Mr. Poon has considerable experience in watch retailing, wholesale
and brand management. During the period from April 1992 to March
1993, he was elected as Director of the Federation of Hong Kong
Watch Trades & Industries Limited which is an official association
representing the watch industry in Hong Kong. Mr. Poon is general
manager and in charge of the Group’s watch retailing business in the
PRC.

Miss Chan Yim Fong, Shirley, aged 32, joined the Group in 1994.
Ms. Chan has sound experience in watch retailing, wholesale and
merchandising. Ms. Chan is a deputy general manager of the Group’s
watch retailing business and currently in charge of the retailing
operations in Shenyang.
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Timecity Hong Kong Rolex and Tudor Boutique
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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2009 2008 Change
—BEAE  —TINF 25
HK$million HK$million %
BE#ET EF ¥iyn 1=p474
Operations
Fg
Turnover 619 475 30
s W
Profit attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company 40 61 (34)
B A AR 2 R B A RN i
Earnings per share — Basic 6.61 HK cents 11.36 HK cents (42)
R AR — KA 6.617&(ll 11.3658 4l
Interim dividend declared during the year N/A 6 N/A
AN T E M 2 R EA EH
Final dividend proposed after
the balance sheet date 6 6 -
Hh ST H 1% BB 2 KB E
2009 2008 Change
—EEhE —EEN\F #E)
HKS$million HK$million %
BE#ET HH# T Bt
Financial position
MR
Total assets 462 438 5
M
Shareholders’ funds 357 327 9
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1 & 2 - Timecity Shenyang Zhongijie store
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3 & 5 - Timecity Shenyang Juvenia Boutique
BEERPESEEEHE

4,7,8,9 &10 - Timecity Shanghai Nan Jing West
Road Flagship store
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6 - Timecity Shanghai New World store
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

In the second half of 2008, the financial tsunami triggered by the US
sub-prime mortgage crisis was spreading widely throughout the globe.
The stock markets of all regions slumped rapidly. The instability of the
banking system and credit crunches, together with the rapid economic
downturn of many countries weakened the consumer markets. Since
the Group has been focusing on the high end watch retailing market,
our business was affected. Although the full year turnover increased by
HK$144 million as compared with last year, the performance in the
second half fell behind that of the first half. Same shop average sales
growth during the year maintained double digit growth. With regard to
the operating profit, competition in the high end watch retailing market
became more intense as the economic situation continued to
deteriorate. Comparing with last year, the operating profit for the year
declined by 39% to HK$41 million, whereas net profit attributable to
shareholders decreased by 34% to HK$40 million.

The principal place of operation of the Group is still in China.
“TIMECITY” is the first watch retail chain store run by a foreign
company. The renovation of the Beijing flagship store was completed
and has started operation during the vyear. Its performance was
satisfactory. In the second half of the year we also opened our flagship
store in Shanghai with watches from Vacheron Constantin, Rolex and
Breguet.
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1,2, 3 & 4 - Timecity Beijing APM store
BB RBA T REZE

5 - Timecity Beijing Blancpain Boutique
BEARBILZEHEEE

6 - Timecity Shanghai China Resources Time Square store
BRI LB ESRE

7 - Timecity Shanghai Ba Li Chun Tian store
BEERN LBEREXRE

8 & 10 - Timecity Beijing Audemars Piguet Boutique
BEERNIEREREEE

9 - Timecity Beijing Vacheron Constantin Boutique
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In order to enhance operational efficiency, the Group regularly reviews
its operation strategy, continuously adjusts its retailing network and
closes down non-performing POSs. During the year under review, we
closed down 1 POS while opened 4 new POSs. After restructuring, the
distribution of the Group’s retail network in China was summarised as
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below:
As at As at
31st March 31st March
2009 2008
RZZBERE R=ZZENF
=A=+-B =A=+-H
Beijing 6 6
|
Shanghai 10 9
i
Shenyang 8 6
i
Chengdu, Chongging, Urumugi and Xiamen 4 5
B~ B SRR R E M
Hong Kong 1 —
a3
29 26

With more new stores gradually put in operation, the Group’s
distribution expenses increased by 43% during the year mainly due to
rentals from new POSs opened and increased staff costs. Inventory
also increased by 37% as compared with last year to cope with
increased business volume. By adopting an effective human resources
management policy in the rapidly changing economic environment, the
administrative expenses were more or less the same as last year. With
regard to gross profit margin, as a result of the intense competition
during the year, the Group increased its marketing efforts in order to
maintain its market position and competitiveness. Therefore, the gross
profit margin declined to 37%, which was below last year of 42%.

4 Py 4R B 2 43 B R OAR H hna3% o TR BT O B R AR
BARE R > UL 4 DA% B3 T 52 R 3 - 5B
A7 15 A8 8 PR A R 38 A o 2% 4R Y R T1H37% - B
FRP R TR B U RARBEHRIARZANN
VR B > AR AT BB S B AR R o BRI Ry
D> R 3 P T B 2L o T R R T A AT A T T e
J3 o A G B K 5 Ak B R > B4 BRI K OF R e
E37% > W5 AF 7 H942% 7 1K -




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Results review

The Group recorded turnover of HK$619 million for the year ended
31st March 2009, (2008: HK$475 million) representing an increase of
30% (2008: 28%) over the last year. The increase was attributable to
the contribution from our new POSs compared with the prior reporting
year.

Distribution costs increased by 43% to HK$170 million mainly due to
increase in rental expenses and staff costs as more POSs came into
operation during the year. Administrative expenses also rose 10% from
HK$29 million to HK$32 million.

As the property market in Hong Kong slumped during the year, our
investment properties recorded valuation losses of HK$4.5 million (2008:
valuation gains of HK$2 million).

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31st March 2009, the Group’s total cash balance amounted to
HK$50 million (2008: HK$94 million). The decrease was mainly due to
additional inventories acquired and renovation expenses incurred for
the opening of new POSs during the year. The Group has a banking
facilities amounting to HK$40 million which is not utilised during the
year. Gearing rate of the Group, expressed as a ratio of total borrowing
over total equity, was 1% as at 31st March 2009 (2008: 1%).

Foreign exchange risks

The Group views its main currencies as Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi
and Swiss Francs. The Group monitors its exposure to foreign
exchange risks, and when it considers necessary and appropriate, will
hedge its foreign exchange risks by using financial instruments.

£

EiEORE

H

BREZZZULEZAZ T — H IR E - R EH SRR
# 3£ %1619,000,000% 70 (2% )\ 4 : 475,000,000%
g ) > WX AR I M 30% (2 F I\ 2 28%) 0 Ik
RN I PR B2 A ) U1 Db B Y O A G
T RR P -

43 8 B AR 34 In43% E170,000,0009 7T > 1 EHR4E R
A L OB MO A ON BB MR A B X Rk
@ B OB A< B e 47 B B 32 @129,000,000% JC 4 =
32,000,000% 7C > 75 L FH10% o

/SR S SN PN I I SN L
4,500,000 W Z MHMEH (ZFF)\FE
fi W 2% %52,000,0009 72 ) ©

mBEERUBER

REZRFRFEZA=ZF—HoAEEZB S L 5HA
###450,000,000% 7¢ (&% )\ 4 : 94,000,000% 7T ) °
B4 0k 5 A A 2 ) Bl B S T 0 A7
Te 46 ¥ I 32 707 B - A 42 [ 6 440,000,000 76 2
SRAT AR BOH > 0 RZ SRAT A5 BRI 4 e R B © 1 =
FELEZA=Z1—H o REBMZ A E R (DA
BB RR) B1% (" EZNE 1%) °

9h GE [ bR
ARG 2 LB R0 - N R R ik BB o A

P S5 A B L R E AT B B AR o UE RO IR T 4
il T L e e O B JRL B



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PROSPECTS

The global economy entered into recession in 2009 and market
sentiment continued to decline. Despite that the PRC Government’s
intention to uphold the economic growth and to maintain economic
vitality by boosting domestic demand, the economy will be still affected
by the influence of the globalisation, and impact on high end watch
retailing market.

Under the depressed operating environment, the Group will take a
prudent business development strategy in order to preserve its
resources to face future challenges. Strengthening retailing network in
China through opening new or expanding existing POSs, as well as
recruiting more retail professionals are still the mainstream directions of
Group’s future business development. The renovation of the Group’s
enlarged Rolex and Tudor boutique in Hong Kong was completed
shortly after the year end. In Shenyang, the Group has also opened its
fourth Vacheron Constantin boutique in May 2009. The Group will also
search for new business opportunities in the second-tier cities in PRC
with strong domestic buying power.

Timecity has been authorised as retailer of many top brands of
watches. The management will monitor the sales performance of these
brands on a regular basis and will adjust the brand mix in order to
achieve optimal sales turnover.

In order to increase the cost-effectiveness, the Group will adopt a
revenue-generating and cost-reducing policy to reinforce operational
management. It will also make use of ERP system to strengthen the
inventory control in order to improve efficiency. In addition, the Group
will enforce risk management on corporate risks and will not purchase
any high-risk, highly leveraged financial derivative products.

The global economy in the first half of 2009 is forecasted to be
sluggish with a lot of uncertainties in the future prospect. However, the
Group’s management strongly believes that the economic recession will
soon bottom out. The global economic activities are expected to pick-
up gradually and the consumer market will improve starting from the
end of this year to early next year. The Group will consolidate its
strengths at the time of adversity, and aims to create a more
sustainable business success when the economy recovers.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ESBRE

The directors have pleasure in submitting their report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 17 to the
financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of
the operations of the Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”)
during the financial year are set out in Note 17 to the financial
statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31st March 2009 and the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group as at that date are set
out in the financial statements on pages 29 to 102.

SHARE CAPITAL

Particulars of the share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in Note 26 to the financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors resolved not to pay interim dividend (2008: 1 HK cent
per share) but have proposed a final dividend of 1 HK cent per share
for the year ended 31st March 2009 (2008: 1 HK cent per share)
subject to the approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
the Note 17 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment are set out
in Note 14 to the financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in investment properties during the year are
set out in Note 16 to the financial statements.

RESERVES
Details of reserves available for distribution to shareholders and

movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during the
year are set out in Note 28 to the financial statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURTIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of Company’s listed securities on the Stock
Exchange during the year.

BORROWING

Detail of all borrowing is set out in Note 25 to the financial
statements.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The Group’s largest supplier contributed approximately 28% of the
total purchases for the year and the aggregate amount of purchases
attributable to the Group’s top five suppliers represented approximately
78% of the Group’s total purchases.

Since the customer base of the Group is very wide, the aggregate
sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers are
approximately 2% of total sales during the year.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to
the knowledge of the directors owning more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had interest in the Group’s five
largest suppliers.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A financial summary of the Group for the past five financial years is
set out on page 103.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors:

Eav Yin (Chairman)
Eav Ming Keong, Kinson
Au Shiu Leung, Alex

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Lai Si Ming
Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline
Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent

Mr. Lai Si Ming and Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline shall retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting in accordance with Bye-Law 99 of
the Company’s Bye-Laws and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.
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The independent non-executive directors are subject to retirement by
rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws.

None of the directors proposed for re-election has a service contract
with the Company or its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31st March 2009, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company and any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO”)) which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were
required to be and were recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules were as follows:

READBME BUFHTESARERE-

BEUEREBREBEICESHLAQAAREMBELQT
HEITIEAFAEEER -FAS 2K ENEAEL
BECEERERMN 2RBEEH -

EBREBTRASKERM - BRARMRES
thZigs

R-ZBEENFZAZ+-B KD AESERTET
BRAEBEARLAHEFAEBEEIE (EER(BHER
HEEBITEERBEMRG D EXVE) W64 - A
EROJESTHEE MBBETEZRBERGE
XVERETR E8D MABHMARARBRXAHNER R
KB (BERBESFRPERIZ2ZERIURERE
ERRAEF2RERAR) IRBEFSFRPEHK
B3R B ERINAMEINABRTFRHEZELME
B LTRAUMBE TR EWBITAESETR
HXHNWEETFA(REFADABALX QTR B
RHNERERXRWT

Long positions in shares of the Company RKQSIRBZER
Approximate
percentage of
aggregate
interests to
Number of total issued
ordinary share capital
Nature of shares held EERLEE
Name of Director interest fo =) B {TRR A%
HENE e LiEeE O 74
%
Mr. Eav Yin BiZh4E Note Bt it 346,764,261 57.73
Mr. Eav Ming Keong, Kinson BHREE Personal {EA 707,400 0.12

Note: Among the 346,764,261 shares in which Mr. Eav Yin is deemed to have
interests under the SFO (a) 19,531,800 shares are personal interest of Mr.
Eav Yin, (b) 804,600 shares are held by Mdm. Lam Kim Phung (spouse
of Mr. Eav Yin), (c) 253,633,692 shares by Century Hero International
Limited, (d) 932,400 shares by Debonair Company Limited, (e) 9,986,364
shares by Goodideal Industrial Limited, (f) 1,275,336 shares by Hexham
International Limited, (g) 1,423,269 shares by Goodness Management
Limited and (h) 59,176,800 shares by Chanchhaya Trustee Holding
Corporation (as a trustee of Eav An Unit Trust). Century Hero International
Limited, Debonair Company Limited, Hexham International Limited, and
Goodness Management Limited are wholly owned and Goodideal
Industrial Limited is 87% owned by Mr. Eav Yin. Eav An Unit Trust is a
discretionary trust of which Mr. Eav Yin is the founder, the beneficiaries
include Mr. Eav Yin, his wife and their children.

Mt BELCEERBEISZRBERINIERAREERZ
346,764,2618 IR 19 & © (a) 19,531,8008% Bz 13 B 15 1=
Sk B AR (b) 804,600 BRHABEMERELL
(B-REZERB)EFE  (c) 253,633,6928 KR 14 H
tiEFEEAERLDAEEAE (d) 9324008 & 7 B
Debonair Company Limited# 75 ; (e) 9,986,364 8% %
3 B§ Goodideal Industrial Limited#¥ % ; (f) 1,275,336
B B 19 HmHexham International Limitedi% & ; (g)
1,423,2698% B% 17 H Goodness Management Limited
8 K (h) 59,176,800/% i% 13 FHChanchhaya Trustee
Holding Corporation (fE &Eav An Unit TrustZ &t
A)ott # Bl B B R 2 7 - Debonair Company
Limited » Hexham International Limited * Goodness
Management Limited¥I BHBIZ Xt £ 2T EEE M
Goodideal Industrial Limited A B 1= L £ HEBE87% °
Eav An Unit Trust32RER B EERZER
ZRINA BSHEANEBEBCEE - HETRESZ
Fho



Save as disclosed herein, as at 31st March 2009, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or
which were required to be recorded in the register kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO or which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

Directors or chief executive of the Company nor their spouses or

In addition, save as disclosed above, none of the

children under 18 years of age had been granted or had exercised any
rights to subscribe for any equity or debt securities of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 20th September 2002, the shareholders of the Company approved
the adoption of a new share option scheme (the “2002 Share Option
Scheme”). The purpose of the 2002 Share Option Scheme is to
encourage qualifying grantees to work towards enhancing the value of
the Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole. Qualifying grantees of the 2002 Share Option
Scheme mean (i) any employee or any business-related consultant,
agent, representative or advisor of the Company or any subsidiary or
any affiliate; or (i) any supplier, agent or consultant who provide
goods or services to the Company or any subsidiary or any affiliate;
or (iii) any customer of the Company or any subsidiary or any affiliate;
or (iv) any business ally or joint venture partner of the Company or
any affiliate. Details of the 2002 Share Option Scheme and movement
during the year ended 31st March 2009 are set out in Note 27 to the
financial statements.

Refreshment of 2002 Share Option Scheme mandate limit (the
“Refreshment”) and amendment of rules of 2002 Share Option Scheme
(the “Amendment”) has been approved at the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 26th August 2008. Details of the Refreshment
and the Amendment are contained in the circular to shareholders
dated 1st August 2008.

No option was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the year
ended 31st March 2009 and as 31st March 2009, there were no
outstanding option granted under the 2002 Share Option Scheme.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed herein, at no time during the year, was the
Company or any of its associated corporations a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate and none of the Directors or their spouses or
children under 18 years of age was granted any right to subscribe for
any shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any of its associated
corporations.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, no director is
considered to have interests in the businesses which compete or are
likely to compete with the businesses of the Group pursuant to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS, WARRANTS OR SIMILAR
RIGHTS

Other than the 2002 Share Option Scheme as explained in Note 27 to
the financial statements, the Company had no outstanding convertible
securities, options, warrants or similar rights as at 31st March 2009
and there was no issue or exercise of any convertible securities,
options, warrants or similar rights during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

As at 31st March 2009, so far as is known to any Directors and chief
executive of the Company, the following persons (other than the
Directors or chief executive of the Company) had an interest or short
position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of the Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register kept by the Company or required to be notified under Section
336 of the SFO:

ESRERMABSH 2@

REXFAESN ARBAFHEEAEBEZEREE
AMETYEMNZH  BEESATEEBELLT
FEMEMEABEBZROUESMERMNE A
TEAMNESHIEEBIEFRET \BRBUTZF
LERTFAMEINURBERAQRALEEMAEEE
ZEMRBRES -

EERBETORRE2 @S

REAFEARZEXAREHL TBEZEIAARE
ERBEXRGMAERLAFS LHRAUEAER
EBB IR AREBARF 2R EE RS -

o[ R AR 58 25 ~ B AR & ~ SR AR 1@ 58 =X ¥ (U4 1@

RO BRRMATHRB ST _FERET BN
ARARAR-ZZZBENFZA=Z+-BHEEATRTE
ZABKRES BRE RDREINECERN RF
ATMERTRITEEMARRES BRE IR
R RECIER -

IRz ENIES

R-ZZZFAFZA=+-H BEFAEAQXIEEK
FTETHRAERA THAL (RQATAESHETET
BABBRMRARRAZROREBROTHEETRR
BERBERMEXVRFE2RID B2 HEXABAELD
ARE ACEREAQXAFEZ2ECHAERE
SFRPEGRPIENBHATFHEZEERAXE !

Approximate
percentage of
issued share

Number of
ordinary shares

beneficial held capital

Name of shareholder Notes [=$-fat-] 1 EBITIRE
BREREERE mizE TEREE [ EO=R )7 4
%

Mdm. Lam Kim Phung MEB T 1 346,764,261 57.73
Century Hero International Limited BB ER AT 2 253,633,692 42.22
Chanchhaya Trustee Holding Chanchhaya Trustee Holding 3 59,176,800 9.85

Corporation Corporation

Covenhills Limited Covenhills Limited 4 97,020,972 16.15



Notes:

1. These shares include 804,600 shares held by Mdm. Lam Kim Phung and
the remaining 345,959,661 shares represent the interest held by Mr. Eav
Yin, spouse of Mdm. Lam Kim Phung, whose interests are disclosed in the
above section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures”.

2. Century Hero International Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Eav Yin who is
also a director of this company.

3. Chanchhaya Trustee Holding Corporation is trustee of Eav An Unit Trust, a
discretionary trust, the beneficiaries of which include Mr. Eav Yin, his wife
and their children.

4. Covenhills Limited is owned equally by Mr. Leong Lou Teck, Mr. Leong
Lum Thye, Miss Leong Yoke Kheng and Mr. Leong Siew Khuen.

All the interests disclosed above represent long positions in shares of
the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st March 2009, there were no other
person (other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company)
who was recorded in the register of the Company as having an
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or, which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
Laws although there is no restriction against such right under Bermuda
law.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

There are 525 employees in the Group as at 31st March 2009. The
Group offers competitive remuneration packages to employees in line
with market trends. Incentives such as discretionary bonuses and staff
share options are offered to motivate employees.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ESERS

Bt -

7. WERMDP804,600BRMAEMESB L LAIEE  Mer
T345,959,661 R HIGI-EE MR L L 2HB)
BERRE BLAEZEZRERLIYESEREE
THRAERRKR®D HERORESFPZERZ IR -

2. HHEBRERADGHABCELEMZERER BLEE
RRAEDBRZESE-

3. Chanchhaya Trustee Holding Corporation% 2 ## {5 stEav
An Unit Trustz FFEA - BEEZZEABEBLCEE
HEFRBEEZF&-

4.  Covenhills LimitedEH R B £ % 4% » Leong Lum Thye%t
4 - Leong Yoke Kheng/IN#H & Leong Siew Khuen st 4
HEHSR -

LXFBBEHERBEHARAERIARDZEFR -

REXFKREEN RZZBEAF=ZA=Z+—HB #
BHMEIARRABLEMzZAL (FQXTESERE
ETBRABRMRAERTAROREERGPES
mARIEE 5 R E RO EXVEFE2R F39 B2 & X
AQAXALRBECREIRE FERBEESRH
ERPIFEBMREFNARLAETFHEZELMR
ZRBIKR -

BE -LENBORASIEhES
APBAREFEMMBAIRFAMERE - HER
BOAATEMLETHES -

BriEgiE

AP 2 AFMAYEEEELBEEZRE M
BREEAGNEYZBEERNEMRS -

fiE & 1% &ir B il 5

R-ZEBEZAF=A=+—H0 AEEHEA5EE
E-AEERTHSBLRAEERMARZE I 2HFH
HE - WREERH (MPBERARE TERESTS)
LEBES -
AEBEECHFHBERIBAFMEZEESRTL BB
EEZEN BERRERETCHMH -

AARESCHERFHEESLZBARAKE
XE FARARTLELBTSRAABBEE -



Annual Report 2009 4

20|21

Asia Commercial Holdings Limited 5 i i 2% 4 A 4 ]

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ESBRE

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, as at the date of this
annual report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float
under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2009 were
audited by CCIF CPA Limited. A resolution will be submitted at the
Annual General Meeting of the Company to re-appoint CCIF CPA
Limited as auditor of the Company.

EXPRESSION OF GRATITUDE
The Board would like to take this opportunity to express its gratitude
to all staff members, shareholders, bankers, customers, suppliers and

professional advisors for the sincere support to the Group.

By Order of the Board

Eav Yin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 13th July 2009
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance practices by emphasising a quality board of directors,
sound internal control, transparency and accountability to all the
shareholders of the Company.

The Company has complied with all the code provisions set out in the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
throughout the year ended 31st March 2009 except for the deviation
from code provision A.4.1 and those discussed below:

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda and enacted by private
act, the Asia Commercial Holdings Limited Company Act, 1989 of
Bermuda (the “1989 Act”). Pursuant to section 3(e) of the 1989 Act,
director holding office as executive chairman or managing director
shall not be subject to retirement by rotation at each annual general
meeting as provided in the Bye-Laws.

As the Company is bounded by the provisions of the 1989 Act, at this
time, the Bye-Laws cannot be amended to fully reflect the
requirements of the Code. As such, a special resolution was passed
at the special general meeting held on 28th March 2007 to amend the
Bye-Laws of the Company so that, inter alia, (i) every director (save
for a director holding office as Chairman or Managing Director) of the
Company shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years; (ii) a director may be removed by an ordinary resolution in
general meeting instead of a special resolution; and (iii) any director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional
director shall hold office until the next following general meeting,
instead of the next annual general meeting.

To enhance good corporate governance practice, Mr. Eav Yin, the
Chairman of the Board has confirmed to the Board that he will
voluntarily retire from his directorship at annual general meeting of the
Company at least once every three years in order for the Company to
comply with the Code, provided that being eligible for re-election, he
may offer himself for re-election at the annual general meeting.
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The Board will continuously review and improve the corporate
governance practices and standards of the Company to ensure that
business activities and decision making processes are regulated in a
proper and prudent manner.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code for securities transactions by
Directors of the Company (the “Code of Conduct”) on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.

Having made specific enquiry with all the Directors of the Company,
all of them confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code and the Code of Conduct during
the year ended 31st March 2009.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group’s business, strategic decisions and
financial performance. The management of the Group is responsible
for the day-to-day management and operation of the respective
individual business unit.

The Board comprises three executive directors and three independent
non-executive directors. The biographical details of the directors and
the relationship among the directors are set out on page 4 of this
Annual Report.

The Board possesses a balance of skills and experience which are
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company. The
opinions raised by the independent non-executive directors of the
Company in the Board meetings facilitate the maintenance of good
corporate governance practices. One of the independent non-executive
directors has the appropriate professional accounting experience and
expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. A balanced
composition of executive and non-executive directors also generates a
strong independent element on the Board, which allows independent
and objective decision making process for the best interests of the
Company.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
director an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers all of them
to be independent.
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The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating
performance of the Group. During the year, 5 Board meetings, 2 Audit
Committee meetings and 1 Remuneration Committee meeting were
held and the individual attendance of directors are set out below:

PRERBHS

EZSEHHS URNASEEZUBREBRR -
AEEBRTONRESETER 2AEREESTEH
RIRFHEESSH SESHERYAINOT :

Audit Remuneration

Committee Committee
Name of Director Board meetings meetings meeting
EENA EEEEE BEESEE: FMESTESR
Executive Directors BITES
Eav Yin Bz 3/5 N/A FiE 11
Eav Ming Keong, Kinson 2R 4/5 N/A i A N/A FiEH
Au Shiu Leung, Alex BER 5/5 N/A FiE N/A FiE A
Independent Non-executive Directors BEFEHITES
Lai Si Ming %5 2 89 2/5 1/2 1/1
Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline F LT 3/5 2/2 1/1
Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent EH 3/5 2/2 11
CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER IFRRTHAR

The chairman is Mr. Eav Yin while the function of the chief executive
officer is divided between the remaining executive directors.

The chairman and the chief executive officer have different roles. The
chairman is responsible for the operation of the Board and the chief
executive officer is responsible for managing the operations of the
Group. Their functions have been clearly divided to ensure a balanced
distribution of power and authority not concentrating on a single
individual.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 of the Code provides that non-executive director
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

During the year, the non-executive directors of the Company are not
appointed for a specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years and re-election at annual general
meeting in accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws. As such, the
Company considers that sufficient measures have been taken to
ensure that the Company’s corporate governance practices are not
less exacting than those in the Code.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board has not set up a nomination committee. Pursuant to the
Company’s Bye-Laws, the Board is empowered to appoint any person
as a director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional member
of the Board. The selection criteria are mainly based on the
professional qualification and experience of the candidate. Newly
appointed directors will be given an induction and a manual on the
duties and responsibilities as a director of a listed company both
under the Listing Rules and applicable laws. A newly appointed
director must retire and be re-elected at the first general meeting after
his first appointment. At each annual general meeting, one-third of the
directors, save for a director holding office as chairman or managing
director, (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not greater than one-third) shall retire from office by
rotation. A retiring director shall be eligible for re-election.
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Pursuant to section 3(e) of the 1989 Act, director holding office as
executive chairman or managing director shall not be subject to
retirement by rotation at each annual general meeting. As the
Company is bounded by the provision of such Act, at this time, the
Bye-Laws cannot be amended to fully reflect the requirements of the
Code. Therefore, in spirit of good corporate governance practice, the
Chairman of the Board of the Company has confirmed to the Board
on 12th July 2007 that he will voluntarily retire from his directorship at
annual general meeting of the Company at least once every three
years in order for the Company to comply with the Code, provide that
being eligible for re-election, he may offer himself for re-election at the
annual general meeting.

The name of the directors who served during the year are set out in
the section headed “Directors and Directors’ Service Contracts” set
out on page 15 of this annual report. There was no change of
directors during the year.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board set up the Remuneration Committee on 15th July 2005
with specific written terms of reference which clearly deal with its
authority and duties. The Remuneration Committee’s role is to make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy and structure
for directors and senior management and to ensure that they are fairly
rewarded for their individual contribution to the Group’s overall
performance, having regard to the interests of shareholders. The
principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include determining
the specific remuneration packages of all directors and senior
management as well as reviewing and approving performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved
by the Board from time to time.

The Remuneration Committee comprises one executive director,
namely Mr. Eav Yin and three independent non-executive directors,
namely Mr. Lai Si Ming, Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline and Mr. Lee
Tat Cheung, Vincent. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr.
Eav Yin.

During the year, a Remuneration Committee meeting was held,
advising the Board on the Group’s overall policy and structure of the
remuneration of the directors and senior management. No director or
any of his/her associates may be involved in any decisions as to his/
her own remuneration. Based on the review and discussion at the
Meeting, the Remuneration Committee recommended to the Board to
approve the Group’s overall policy and structure of the remuneration
of the directors and senior management.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31st March 2009, the total remuneration of the
Company’s auditor for statutory audit services and other services is
HK$845,000 (2008: HK$883,000) and HK$250,000 (2008: HK$448,000)
respectively.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board set up the Audit Committee in 1st January 1999 with
specific written terms of reference which clearly deal with its authority
and duties. The Audit Committee’s role is to review the Group’s
financial reporting, internal controls and corporate governance issues
and to make relevant recommendations to the Board.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent non-
executive directors namely Mr. Lai Si Ming, Ms. Wong Wing Yue,
Rosaline and Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent. The Audit Committee is
chaired by Mr. Lai Si Ming.

Under its terms of reference, which were prepared and adopted with
reference to the Code and “A Guide for the Formation of an Audit
Committee” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Audit Committee is required, among other things, to
oversee the relationship with the external auditors, to review the
Group’s interim and annual results, to review the scope, extent and
effectiveness of internal control of the Group, to review accounting
policies and practices adopted by the Group, to engage independent
legal or other advisors as it determines is necessary and to perform
investigations.

The Audit Committee held 2 meetings during the year to review,
among other things, the interim and annual financial statements.
Based on the review and discussion at the meetings, the Audit
Committee recommended to the Board, among other things, to

approve the interim and annual financial statements of the Group.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board acknowledges its responsibilities for preparing the financial
statements where were prepared in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. A statement by the
auditor about their reporting responsibilities is set out on pages 27 to
28 of this Annual Report. As far as the Board is aware, there are no
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

INTERNAL CONTROL

During the year, the Board, with the establishment of internal audit
department, had reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal
control of the Group including material controls over financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions.
Based on the results of the review, the Group will continue to take
steps to further enhance the effectiveness of the internal control.
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SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION

The objective of shareholder communication is to provide our
shareholders with detailed information about the Company so that they
can exercise their rights as shareholders in an informed manner.

The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure its
shareholders are kept well informed of key business imperatives.
These include general meetings, interim and annual reports,
announcements and circulars. Procedure for voting by poll has been
included in the circulars of the Company accompanying notice
convening special and annual general meetings and has been read out
by the chairman at the general meetings.

At the 2008 annual general meeting, a separate resolution was
proposed by the chairman in respect of each separate issue, including
re-election of directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ASIA COMMERCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Asia
Commercial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 29 to
102, which comprise the consolidated and Company balance sheets
as at 31st March 2009, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash
flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting principles and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31st March 2009 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

CCIF CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 13th July 2009

Alvin Yeung
Practising Certificate Number P05206
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

'i.l -
mEWMAR
BE-ZZTNE=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st March 2009

2009 2008
—ETAE —EENE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
iig=a FET FETT
Turnover 2y 5 618,813 475,289
Cost of sales $HE A (389,520) (277,198)
Gross profit EF 229,293 198,091
Valuation (losses)/gains on investment BREWYEZ
properties 51 (Bi8) W& (4,500) 2,004
Other revenue Hfih g 2 5 17,780 16,819
Distribution costs palki= 0% (169,750) (119,437)
Administrative expenses THEHA (31,677) (29,314)
Other operating expenses, net Httge B8R B4 (1) (764)
Profit from operations mEEN 41,145 67,399
Finance costs B 75 AR AR 7(a) (25) (913)
Other income/(expenses), net Hig A, (BH) FB&E 8 1,590 (488)
Profit before taxation BBl 7 42,710 65,998
Income tax FTE#H 10 (3,019) (4,689)
Profit for the year KEEBH 39,691 61,309
Attributable to equity shareholders BEBEREFATRGEEA
of the Company 39,691 61,309
Dividends payable to equity EBHFELATRBHERA
shareholders of the Company BEREXEEZ
attributable to the year: ke : 12
Interim dividend declared during FREEMzHEEKRE
the year - 6,007
Final dividend proposed after HEHBRRKBEZ2RBRE
the balance sheet date 6,007 6,007
6,007 12,014
Earnings per share sSBREH 13
Basic (HK cents) A GBAL) 6.61 11.36
Diluted (HK cents) #E (GB4L) 6.61 11.36

The notes on pages 34 to 102 form part of these financial statements. HIMEEE102H 2B M Bt I Rk < B E D ©
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

moEEREBR

As at 31st March 2009 R=—ZZEAE=A=+—H

2009 2008
—EBTAE —EENE
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
Bt FET FET
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment L ER YN 14 33,312 23,801
Prepaid lease payments HEBEMRE 15 4,274 4,583
Investment properties REME 16 56,285 60,579
Available-for-sale investments AHHEEZRE 19 2,180 2,180
96,051 91,143
Current assets REBEE
Inventories 75 20 274,681 201,313
Prepaid lease payments HEBMSRE 15 67 71
Trade receivables, other receivables, ESEWNRR - HEULERR
deposits and prepayments RekBARE 21 41,457 50,909
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBESEEY 22 49,571 94,496
365,776 346,789
Current liabilities g I R=R
Trade payables, other payables and EZEMERR  HMEMER
accrued charges FESER 23 98,798 103,905
Income tax payable EHRmER 24 281 1,500
Loan notes ERERE 25 2,898 -
101,977 105,405
Net current assets RBEEFE 263,799 241,384
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTEERE 359,850 332,527
Non-current liabilities EFKHERE
Loan notes EXREE 25 - 2,910
Rental received in advance FEW S 2,418 2,493
2,418 5,403
Net assets EEFH 357,432 327,124
Capital and reserves BRA RS
Share capital i@ 26 60,070 60,070
Reserves HE 28 297,362 267,054
Total equity attributable to equity EATBRBHEABGEES
shareholders of the Company 357,432 327,124

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 13th July 2009 and signed on its behalf by:
RIBEAFLATZARESSEBRERTE YATIESAREE:

Au Shiu Leung, Alex Eav Ming Keong, Kinson

EER L
Director Director
EE EE

The notes on pages 34 to 102 form part of these financial statements.
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BALANCE SHEET

EEBMER

RZEBEZENF=HA=+—H As at 31st March 2009

2009 2008
—EBEAE —ZEENF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B FETT FET

Non-current assets EREEE
Interest in subsidiaries RHB AR R 17 - —

Current assets RENEE
Other receivables and prepayments HEWEBRFR R FE FE 21 123 110
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEW B A~ B I8 18 283,373 285,604
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEEEY 22 410 17,510
283,906 303,224
Current liabilities REE&RE

Other payables and accrued charges HMtEMERARRESTER 23 2,410 2,278
Amounts due to subsidiaries K A R E 18 141 96
Loan notes ERERE 25 2,898 —
5,449 2,374
Net current assets RHEETE 278,457 300,850
Total assets less current liabilities BMEERTEBERE 278,457 300,850

Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Loan notes EREE 25 - 2,910
- 2,910
Net assets BEFHA 278,457 297,940

Capital and reserves A RS
Share capital B% 72X 26 60,070 60,070
Reserves [ERE 28 218,387 237,870
Total equity Wi 278,457 297,940

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 13th July 2009 and signed on its behalf by:
RIBEAFLATZAEESSEBRERTE YATIESAREE:

Au Shiu Leung, Alex
EER
Director

EZ

The notes on pages 34 to 102 form part of these financial statements.

EZ

Eav Ming Keong, Kinson
L]

Director

FEIMEZF12HEZMEFER LT BHRR 2 BB D -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mORDBME

For the year ended 31st March 2009 HBZE-—ZZNE=A=+—HLEE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
BEERAATIRBERA

Share Share Revaluation Exchange Capital Contributed Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve surplus losses Total
kE kHriEE EfGE ERtE EXRE BB BEEBE W
HK$’000  HK$’000 HK$’000  HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FHET
Balance at 1st April NR-EBEELE

2007 U A — A& 33,372 84 242 345 252,381 17,524 (184,065) 119,883
Exchange differences on 3§ 45hNKi B A &

translation of financial R 3

statements of BREER

overseas subsidiaries E2 — - - 16,014 - - — 16,014
Profit for the year EE T — — - — - — 61,309 61,309
Total income and TECER

expense recognised ZHWARBEX

for the year Fag ] — — - 16,014 — — 61,309 77,323
Dividend paid (Note 12) B IR B (ff2£12) - - - - - — (6,007)  (6,007)
Issue of shares (Note 26) 2%1T 1D (ft:t26) 26,698 80,092 - — - — — 106,790
Revaluation on properties = {4 %

(Note 16(c)) (Ktat16(c)) - - 31,320 - - - - 31,320
Share issue expenses BRHEBETZ2EMR — (2,185) - — - — — (2,185)
Balance at 31st March RZ-ZZZENF=A

2008 =t+—-B#&& 60,070 77,991 31,562 16,359 252,381 17,524 (128,763) 327,124
Balance at 1st April R-ZBENE

2008 mA—RB4&e 60,070 77,991 31,562 16,359 252,381 17,524 (128,763) 327,124
Exchange differences on g 4hNHi B A &)

translation of financial ~ B xk >~

statements of REER

overseas subsidiaries =8 - - - (5,234) - - - (5,234)
Profit for the year NEEHF - - - - - - 39,691 39,691
Total income and KECHER

expense recognised ZWARBEX

for the year pak] - - - (5,234) - - 39,691 34,457

Dividend paid (Note 12) B KRE (ff:t12) -
Revaluation on properties & i #) %
(Note 16(c)) (KaF16(c)) -

_ — - - - (6,007)  (6,007)

- 1,858 - - - - 1,858

Balance at 31st March R-ZBEZBHhhE=A
2009 =+—-B&&% 60,070

77,991 33,420 11,1256 252,381 17,524 (95,079) 357,432

The notes on pages 34 to 102 form part of these financial statements. EMEEF102E 2B SRR 2 BB ©



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
REORMERER

BE-ZETZNF=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st March 2009

2009 2008
—ETEAE —EENE
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt F#ET FET
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING HRANEEEBZHEFE
ACTIVITIES 29 (13,247) (35,175)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEB
Purchases of properties, plant and REYE KER
equipment B3 (24,545) (13,699)
Purchases of available-for-sale BEAMEE
investments ZRE = (1,750)
Interest received from short-term 2 W BRITFER
bank deposits FIE 23 3,294
Other interest income received 2 W HE MR 2 WA 251 972
NET CASH USED IN INVESTMENT CERARKREEREZ
ACTIVITIES REeFH (24,271) (11,183)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BETH
Net proceeds from issue of shares DARMBEARNBITRNG
by way of open offer 8RB FEE = 104,605
Interest and premium paid on the EREREEFNE
loan notes RiEE (25) (11,298)
Redemption of loan notes BEERERE = (59,027)
Dividend paid 2fRE (6,007) (6,007)
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED (B, EERRE
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES EHREFE (6,032) 28,273
DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH HeRBEEZEEY
EQUIVALENTS p: K (43,550) (18,085
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT £ #R&£RRL
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR ZEY 94,496 118,202
EXCHANGE DIFFERENCES ON CASH & RIRL2Z{EMY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EREHE (1,375) (5,621)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT S XBE&£RRL
THE END OF THE YEAR ZEY 49,571 94,496
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF REeRBEEZEEY
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B
Short-term bank deposits EHRTER = 36,208
Cash at bank and on hand RITEFERERFERS 49,571 58,288
49,571 94,496

The notes on pages 34 to 102 form part of these financial statements. EMEEF102E 2B ISR R 2 BB ©
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GENERAL

Asia Commercial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an
investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in trading and retailing of watches and property leasing.

The Company is a limited company incorporated in Bermuda and
its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the corporate information to the annual report.

These financial statements are presented in thousand of units of
Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000), unless otherwise stated. These
financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board
of Directors on 13th July 2009.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations, issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong, and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange.
The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
buildings, available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets
and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) at
fair value through profit or loss and investment properties.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise their
judgment in the process of applying the Company’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements as disclosed in Note 3.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(@)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

In the current year, the Group has, where applicable, applied
the following amendments and interpretations (“new
HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) which are or have become
effective:

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 7 Reclassification of Financial

(Amendments) Assets
HK(IFRIC) — INT 12 Service Concession
Arrangements
HK(IFRIC) — INT 14 HKAS 19 — The Limit on a

Defined Benefit Asset,
Minimum Funding
Requirements and their
Interaction

The adoption of these new HKFRSs had no material effect
on how the results and financial position for the current or
prior accounting periods have been prepared and presented.
Accordingly, no prior year adjustment is required.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ¥5 ¥R % Bfd 5E

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(@)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

The Group has not early adopted any of the following new
and revised standards, amendments or interpretations which
have been issued but are not yet effective for annual
periods beginning on 1st April 2008:

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKAS 23 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 & HKAS 1
(Amendments)

HKAS 39 (Amendments)

HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27

(Amendments)

HKFRS 1 (Revised)

HKFRS 2 (Amendments)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

HKFRS 8

HK(IFRIC) — INT 9 & HKAS
39 (Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) — INT 13
HK(IFRIC) — INT 15
HK(IFRIC) — INT 16
HK(IFRIC) — INT 17
HK(IFRIC) — INT 18

Improvements to HKFRSs'

Improvements to HKFRSs
20098

Presentation of Financial
Statements?

Borrowing Costs?

Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements®

Puttable Financial Instruments
and Obligations Arising on
Liquidation?

Eligible Hedged Items?®

Cost of an Investment in a
Subsidiary, Jointly
Controlled Entity or
Associate?

First-time Adoption of Hong
Kong Financial Reporting
Standards?®

Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations?

Business Combinations?®

Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments?
Operating Segments?

Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives’

Customer Loyalty
Programmes*

Agreements for the
Construction of Real
Estate?

Hedges of a Net Investment
in a Foreign Operation®

Distribution of Non-cash
Assets to Owners?

Transfers of Assets from
Customers®
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January
2009 except for the amendments to HKFRS 5, effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1st July 2009.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January
2009.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July
2009.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July
2008.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st October
2008.

6 Effective for transfer of assets from customers received on or
after 1st July 2009.

v Effective for annual periods ending on or after 30th June 2009.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January

2009, 1st July 2009 and 1st January 2010, as appropriate.

The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the
accounting for business combination for which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first
annual reporting period beginning on or after 1st July 2009.

HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the accounting treatment for
changes in a parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary.

The Company’s directors anticipate that the application of
the other new and revised standards, amendments or
interpretations will have no material impact on the results
and the financial position of the Group.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31st March 2009 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control
exists when the Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting
rights that presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control

commences until the date that control ceases.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 #R %% Bfd 5E

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to
the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
Note 2(g)), unless the investment is classified as held for
sale.

Other investments in equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments in
equity securities, other than investments in subsidiaries and
associates, are as follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at cost,
which is their transaction price unless fair value can be
more reliably estimated using valuation techniques whose
variables include only data from observable markets. Cost
includes attributable transaction costs,
indicated otherwise below. These

except where
investments are
subsequently accounted for as follows, depending on their
classification:
Investments in equity securities held for trading are
classified as current assets. Any attributable transaction
costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At each
balance sheet date the fair value is remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does not include
any dividends or interest earned on these investments as
these are recognised in accordance with the policies set out
in Note 2(0).

Investments in equity securities that do not have a listed
market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured are recognised in the balance
sheet at cost less impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Other investments in equity securities (Continued)

Other investments in equity securities which are not held for
trading are classified as available-for-sale equity securities.
At each balance sheet date the fair value is remeasured,
with any resultant gain or loss being recognised directly in
equity. Dividend income from these investments is
recognised in profit or loss in accordance with the policy
in Note 2(0). When these
derecognised or impaired (see Note 2(g)), the cumulative
gain or loss previously

recognised in profit or loss.

set out investments are

recognised directly in equity is

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the
Group and/or the Company commits to purchase/sell the
investments or when they expire.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see Note 2(f)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include land held for a currently undetermined future use.

Investment properties are stated in the balance sheet at fair
value. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value
or from the retirement or disposal of an investment property
Rental
investment properties is accounted for as described in Note
2(0).

is recognised in profit or loss. income from

When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, the interest is classified and accounted for as
an investment property on a property-by-property basis. Any
such property interest which has been classified as an
investment property is accounted for as if it were held
(see Note 2(f)),

accounting policies are applied to that

under a finance lease and the same
interest as are
applied to other investment properties held under finance
leases. Lease payments are accounted for as described in

Note 2(f).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ¥5 ¥R %R Bfd 5E

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Other property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are
stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see Note 2(g)):

— buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land, where the fair value of the building
could be measured separately from the fair value of
the leasehold land at the inception of lease (see Note

2(f));
— freehold land; and
—  other items of plant and equipment.

If an item of property becomes an investment property
because its use has changed as evidenced by end of
owner-occupation, any difference between the carrying
amount and the fair value of that item at the date of
transfer is revaluation reserve. On the

subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the relevant

recognised in

revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to retained
profits.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal. Any related
revaluation surplus is transferred from the
reserve to retained profits.

revaluation
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of

transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines

that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset

or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a

payment or a series of payments. Such a determination is

made based on an evaluation of the substance of the

arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement

takes the legal form of a lease.

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases, with the
following exceptions:

property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as an investment property
on a property-by-property basis and, if classified
as an investment property, is accounted for as if
held under a finance lease (see Note 2(d)); and

land held for own use under an operating lease,
the fair value of which cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of a building
situated thereon at the inception of the lease, is
accounted for as being held under a finance
lease, unless the building is also clearly held
under an operating lease. For these purposes, the
inception of the lease is the time that the lease
was first entered into by the Group, or taken over
from the previous lessee.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 ¥R %% Bfd 5E

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

0

Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value
of the leased asset, or if lower, the present value of
the minimum
included
liabilities, net of finance charges, are
obligations under finance

lease payments, of such assets are
in fixed assets and the corresponding
recorded as
leases. Depreciation is
provided at rates which write off the cost or valuation
of the assets over the term of the relevant lease or,
where it is likely the Company or Group will obtain
ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as set out
in Note 14(b). Impairment losses are accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy as set out in
Note 2(g). Finance charges implicit in the lease
payments are charged to profit or loss over the period
of the
constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining
balance of the obligations for each accounting period.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

leases so as to produce an approximately

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or
loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments made. Contingent rentals are written off as
an expense of the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term except where the property is
classified as an investment property (see Note 2(d)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9) Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables

Investments in equity securities (other than investments
in subsidiaries and associates (see Note 2(g)(ii)) and
other current and non-current receivables that are
stated at cost or amortised cost or are classified as
available-for-sale equity securities are reviewed at each
balance sheet date to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that comes to
the attention of the group about one or more of the
following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtors;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

—  For unlisted equity securities carried at cost,
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
asset and the estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset where the effect of
discounting is material. Impairment losses for
equity securities are not reversed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables (Continued)

For trade receivables and other financial assets
carried at amortised cost, the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
initial
recognition of these assets), where the effect of

the effective interest rate computed at
discounting is material. This assessment is made
collectively where financial assets carried at
amortised cost share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not
been individually assessed as impaired. Future
cash flows for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk

characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be linked objectively to an event occurring after
recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.

the impairment loss was
A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result
in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

For available-for-sale equity securities, which are
stated at fair value when a decline in the fair
value has been recognised directly in equity and
there is objective evidence that the asset is

impaired, the cumulative loss that has been

recognised directly in equity is removed from
equity and is recognised in profit or loss even
been
derecognised. The amount of the cumulative loss
that is is the
difference between the acquisition cost (net of
any principal
current fair value, less any impairment loss on

though the financial asset has not

recognised in profit or loss

repayment and amortisation) and

that asset previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in
respect of available-for-sale equity securities are
not reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such

assets is recognised directly in equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables (Continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors included
within trade and other receivables, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded
using an allowance account.
satisfied that remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against trade
debtors directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to the
allowance account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off directly are recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group is
recovery is

Impairment of other assets

information are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to

Internal and external sources of
identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have

decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;
— prepaid lease payments; and
in subsidiaries

— investments (except for those

classified as being held for sale).

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).

inflows

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the cash generating
units (or group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs to sell, or

value in use, if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment

impairment loss been

losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

(h)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(iii)  Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group
is required to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, “Interim financial reporting”,
in respect of the first six months of the financial year.
At the end of the interim period, the Group applies the
same and reversal

impairment testing, recognition,

criteria as it would at the end of the financial year.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity securities
and unquoted equity securities carried at cost are not
reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case even
if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed only at
the end of the financial year to which the interim

period relates.
Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net

realisable value. Cost is determined on a first-in, first-out
basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any
write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all
losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an
increase in net realisable value is recognised as a reduction
in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in
the period in which the reversal occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U]

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on
the balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets
and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition.

Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place.
The accounting policies adopted in respect of each category
of financial assets are set out below.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss has two
subcategories, including financial assets held-for-trading and
those designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. At each balance sheet date subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade and
other receivables, loan receivables and bank deposits) are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses (see Note

2(9)(0))-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U]

Financial instruments (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Non-derivative financial assets which do not fall into any of
the above categories are classified as available-for-sale
financial assets and are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs. At each balance sheet date, the fair value
is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised directly in equity, except for impairment losses.
When these financial assets are derecognised or impaired,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised directly in
equity is recognised in the profit or loss.

For available-for-sale equity financial assets, an impairment
loss is not reversed through the income statement. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such assets is
recognised directly in equity.

For available-for-sale debt financial assets, reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the
Group are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities.
Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of

direct issue costs.

Equity instruments issued by the

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including borrowings, other payables
and balances with group companies are initially recognised
at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U]

1)

(K

U]

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets
are transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit
or loss.

For financial liabilities, they are removed from the Group’s
balance sheet when, and only when, it is extinguished (i.e.
when the obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires). The difference between
the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid or payable is recognised in profit
or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement.

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present value.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when,
the Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate
employment or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal plan which is

without realistic possibility of withdrawal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m)

Income tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
profit or loss because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using
the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group as a parent is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to
profit or loss, except when it relates to items charged or
credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is
also dealt with in equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder

guarantees are contracts that

incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of the debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair
value of the guarantee (being the transaction price,
unless the fair value can otherwise be reliably
estimated) is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. Where consideration
is received or receivable for the issuance of the

guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to that
category of asset. Where no such consideration is
received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of any

deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over the
term of the guarantee as income from financial
In addition, provisions are
recognised in accordance with Note 2(n)(ii) if and when
(i) it becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee
will call upon the Group under the guarantee, and (ii)
the amount of that claim on the Group is expected to
exceed the amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation.

guarantees issued.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

(o)

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities (Continued)

(i)  Other provisions and contingent liabilities

liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the

Provisions are recognised for other
Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
remote.

economic benefits is Possible obligations,

whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits

events are also disclosed as contingent

is remote.

Revenue recognition

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered
and title has been passed.

Revenue from provision of services is recognised when
services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through

effective interest rate applicable, which

the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount.

Rental income, including rental invoiced in advance from
letting of properties under operating leases, is recognised
on a straight-line basis over the period of the respective
leases.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’
established.

rights to receive payment have been
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

(a)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are

recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair
value was determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the

foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Balance sheet items are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
balance sheet date. The resulting exchange differences are

recognised directly in a separate component of equity.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences recognised in equity which
relate to that foreign operation is included in the calculation

of the profit or loss on disposal.

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is
considered to be related to the Group if:

() the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through
one or more intermediaries, to control the Group or
exercise significant influence over the Group in making
financial and operating policy decisions, or has joint
control over the Group;

(i) the Group and the party are subject to common
control;

(i) the party is an associate of the Group or a joint
venture in which the Group is a venturer;

(iv) the party is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent, or a close family
member of such an individual, or is an entity under the
control, joint control or significant influence of such
individuals;
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

U]

Related parties (Continued)

(v) the party is a close family member of a party referred
to in (i) or is an entity under the control, joint control
or significant influence of such individuals; or

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is
for the benefit of employees of the Group or of any
entity that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be

influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that
is engaged either in providing products or services (business
segment), or in providing products or services within a
particular economic environment (geographical segment),
which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from
those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting
system, the Group has chosen business segment information
as the primary reporting format and geographical segment
information as the secondary reporting format for the
purposes of these financial statements.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities
include items directly attributable to a segment as well as
those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to that
segment. For example,

segment assets may include

inventories, trade receivables and property, plant and

equipment. Segment revenue, expenses, assets and
liabilities are determined before intra-group balances and
intra-group transactions are eliminated as part of the
consolidation process, except to the extent that such intra-
group balances and transactions are between group entities
within a single segment. Inter-segment pricing is based on

similar terms as those available to other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during
the period to acquire segment assets (both tangible and
intangible) that are expected to be used for more than one
period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and corporate
assets, interest-bearing loan, borrowings, tax balances,

corporate and financing expenses.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In preparing these financial statements, management is required
to exercise significant judgments in the selection and application
of accounting principles, including making estimates and
assumptions. The following is a review of the more significant
accounting policies that are impacted by judgments and
uncertainties and for which different amounts may be reported
under a different set of conditions or using different assumptions.

(i)  Write down of inventories

Inventories are written down to net realisable value based
on an assessment of the realisability of inventories. Write
down on inventories are recorded where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
realised. The identification of write down requires the use of
judgments and estimates. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying value of inventories and write down of inventories
in the periods in which such estimate has been changed.

(i) Impairment loss on trade receivables and other receivables

The policy for impairment losses is based on an assessment
of the recoverability of trade receivable and other
receivables and interest in subsidiaries. Impairments are
applied to trade receivables and other receivables and
interest in subsidiaries where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may be
uncollectible. The identification of impairment loss requires
the use of judgment and estimates. Where the expectation
is different from original estimates, such difference will
impact the carrying value of receivables and impairment loss
expenses in the period in which such estimate has been
changed.

3.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(@)

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial

risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (including

foreign currency risk and interest rate risk). These risks are

limited by the Group’s financial management policies and

practices described below.

(i)

(i)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a
customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations, and the Group’s
credit risk is primarily to cash at banks, bank deposits,
trade receivables and other receivables. Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposures to these
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Cash at banks and bank deposits are placed with
licensed financial institutions with high credit ratings.
The Group monitors the exposure to each single
financial institution.

For trade receivables and other receivables, credit
checks are part of the normal operating process and
stringent monitoring procedures are in place to deal
with overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amounts of trade receivables and other
receivables at each balance sheet date to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit
risk with exposure spread over a number of
counterparties and customers. The maximum exposure
to credit risk without taking account of any collateral
held is represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the balance sheet after deducting any

impairment allowance.

Further quantitative disclosure in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables
and other receivables are set out in Note 21.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able
to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(@)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4.

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based

MBERER (F)

() HMHERMBEE (&)

(i) REBELEE (&)

TERHLAFEEEREEREERZ
BRTENIBE (BRELEBNE
HREAE2FEMZE  REER
ZNRFERFRRERBIREE
BEAXNAITRFREXNTZEREAH

on rates current at the balance sheet date) and the E
earliest date the Group and the Company can be
required to pay:
The Group &
2009
—EBBAE
Total
contractual More than 1
undiscounted Within 1 year year but less
Carrying cash flow or on demand than 2 years
amount EHRITH R—ERK Bia—F
REE ReR=EEH HEEKXK BLME
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FEr FEr F#Er FEr
Trade payables, other ESEMAERA
payables and HMEMERER
accrued charges EitEAR 98,798 98,798 98,798 -
Loan notes EREE 2,898 2,925 2,925 -
101,696 101,723 101,723 -
2008
—EENF
Total
contractual More than 1
undiscounted  Within 1 year year but less
Carrying cash flow or on demand than 2 years
amount BHRRFTR R—FR BB —F
REE BRLRE2HH RIEER BORWE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FAET FET
Trade payables, other BESEMSERN
payables and HihEAERRR
accrued charges EEA 103,905 103,905 103,905 -
Loan notes EXRERE 2,910 2,935 25 2,910
106,815 106,840 103,930 2,910




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4. HEEMBSIE (8)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) MIFERBEE (E)
(i) Liquidity risk (Continued) (i) HEELEE (&)
The Company AT

2009
“BTAE

Total
contractual
undiscounted

Within 1 year

More than 1
year but less

Carrying cash flow or on demand than 2 years
amount EHRITH R—ER BiR—F
REE ReR=EEH HEEKXK B RWE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FEr FEr FEr FEr
Other payables and Hih B IR K
accrued charges EitEAR 2,410 2,410 2,410 -
Amounts due to EAHE AR
subsidiaries E QL] 141 141 141 -
Loan notes EREE 2,898 2,925 2,925 -
5,449 5,476 5,476 -
2008
—EENF
Total
contractual More than 1
undiscounted  Within 1 year year but less
Carrying cash flow or on demand than 2 years
amount BHRRFTR R—FR BiB—F
REE BLRE2HH RIEER BORWE
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET FAET FAET
Other payables and Hih AR K
accrued charges EER 2,278 2,278 2,278 -
Amounts due to EAHEAR
subsidiaries ;B 96 96 96 -
Loan notes EXREE 2,910 2,935 25 2,910
5,284 5,309 2,399 2,910
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(@)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)  Foreign currency risk

(iv)

Presently, there is no hedging policy with respect to
the foreign exposure.

The majority of the subsidiaries of the Group operate
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) with
most of transactions denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”).
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk arising
from the exposure of RMB against the Hong Kong
dollars.

The Group had certain investments in foreign
operations in RMB, whose net assets were exposed to
foreign currency risk. Fluctuation in such currency
would be reflected in the movement of the exchange

reserve.

The Group had no material foreign currency exposure
on the net monetary position of each group entity
against its respective functional currency.
In addition, the conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of the
foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market interest
rates and the Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets except for cash and cash equivalents details of
which have been disclosed in Note 22.

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily
to fixed-rate loan notes which details have been
disclosed in Note 25 to the financial statements. The
Group will continue to review the market trend, as well
its financial
position in order to identify the most effective tools for

as its business operation needs and

interest risk management.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Capital risk management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholders returns that might be possible with higher level
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by
a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of a
net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. For this purpose the
Group defines net debt as total debt (which includes loan
notes and other financial liabilities) less bank deposits and
cash. Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity

less unaccrued proposed dividends.

During the year ended 31st March 2009,
strategy, which
maintain the net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio as low as

the Group’s
remains unchanged from 2008, was to

feasible. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell
assets to reduce debt. As at 31st March 2009 and 2008,
the Group did not have net debt.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject
to externally imposed capital requirements.

Fair value

trade
receivables, other receivables, deposits and prepayments,
trade payables, other payables and accrued charges are not
materially different from their carrying amounts because of

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents,

the immediate or short term maturity of these financial
instruments.

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade
reasonable

approximation of their fair value. The fair value of financial

receivables and other receivables are a
liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting
the future contractual cash flows at the current market
rate that
financial instruments.

interest is available to the Group for similar
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

871 5 ¥k 2R Bit 5

5. TURNOVER AND OTHER REVENUE

5. SRURHMUES

Turnover represents the gross proceeds received and receivable CEBHNERFEERYELHA 2 CREERZ
derived from the sale of watches and property leasing and is BRE - FHENOT :
summarised as follows:
2009 2008
—EEAE —EENEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Turnover EERH
Sales of watches EERHEE 615,735 473,791
Gross rental income from properties REWEZHESERA 3,078 1,498
618,813 475,289
Other revenue Hfth Ui 35
Interest income from short-term EHRITER
bank deposits B WA 23 3,294
Other interest income H iR 2 WA 251 972
Total interest income on financial assets not IEBERRANBEEEN SR
at fair value through profit or loss EEMEENFEWRALLE 274 4,266
Customer services income and others EERBWAREM 17,506 12,553
17,780 16,819
636,593 492,108
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SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. NEEHR

The Group has determined that business segments are its AEBREREFAUEBEIEATIMHESD

primary reporting format and geographical segments are its BAR - AEEBTELENEECEBEER
secondary reporting format. The Group’s major operating business SHE o
organised and managed is sale of watches.
() Business segment (i) ¥BEaR
Details of the segment information by business segment are BREBRIPEZ2PBEERFEBNT :
as follows:
2009
—EBTAE
Sales of
watches Others* Consolidated
fEERIHE Hip &=E
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FETT FETT FET
Turnover EEL
External sales HINEE 615,735 3,078 618,813
Segment results DHEEE 58,142 1,371 59,513
Unallocated operating expenses AR HEKEEER (14,142)
Operating profit SRR 45,371
Valuation losses on investment }x§¢@¥zfﬁ{aﬁﬂé
properties - (4,500) (4,500)
Interest income FE WA 274
Finance costs Bt 75 AR AR (25)
Other income/(expenses), net Hibiezk (BH) F5H
— allocated — B9 (1,305) - (1,305)
— unallocated — REDIE 2,895
1,590
Profit before taxation R B¢ A% A 42,710
Income tax g (3,019)
Profit for the year RKEEER 39,691
ASSETS &aE
Segment assets DHEEE 391,777 66,856 458,633
Unallocated corporate assets 51& BOBRAREE 3,194
Consolidated total assets BEBEE 461,827
LIABILITIES 1=K
Segment liabilities DEEE 93,969 4,433 98,402
Unallocated corporate liabilities ARPEATERE 5,993
Consolidated total liabilities SmEBAasE 104,395
INFORMATION &8
Capital expenditure — allocated &ABEX-S2 298 22,788 1,757 24,545
Depreciation — allocated WE-S28 13,822 430 14,252
Depreciation — unallocated ME-REDE a7
14,299
Amortisation of prepaid lease BRI #
payment - 71 71
Non-cash items other than TEREHEUIZ
depreciation and amortisation FIBLE\E E
Bad debts written off 6y 1= 1 - 1
Write back of inventories =78 2 ﬁf% ] (17,209) - (17,209)

* Others included property leasing income.

* HBEWEEERA -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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() Business segment (Continued)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

HNEER (8)

() EHRE (R

2008
—EENF
Sales of
watches Others* Consolidated
EEHE H fto* RE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FETT FET
Turnover EE
External sales HINEE 473,791 1,498 475,289
Segment results DEHES 77,702 198 77,900
Unallocated operating expenses KIS ERKLERA (16,771)
Operating profit 75 A 61,129
Valuation gains on investment REMEZHEKRSE
properties — 2,004 2,004
Interest income FE WA 4,266
Finance costs B & B AR (913)
Other expenses, net HtER FE
— allocated e =r (126) - (126)
— unallocated — REHHE (362)
(488)
Profit before taxation R i A1 i 65,998
Income tax g (4,689)
Profit for the year N FE R F 61,309
ASSETS &aE
Segment assets THEEE 346,495 70,803 417,298
Unallocated corporate assets ARBADERREE 20,634
Consolidated total assets GEREE 437,932
LIABILITIES B&E
Segment liabilities SEAE 99,052 4,408 103,460
Unallocated corporate liabilities rESENTERE 7,348
Consolidated total liabilities meBas 110,808
INFORMATION &
Capital expenditure — allocated &4 BxX — 298 13,697 2 13,699
Depreciation — allocated E — S898 6,981 542 7,523
Depreciation — unallocated TE — REHE 48
7,571
Amortisation of prepaid lease HEFENREEE
payment — 111 111
Non-cash items other than IWEREHEUIMZ
depreciation and amortisation FIREEE
Loss on liquidation of NG
subsidiaries BEREIE 335 13 348
Bad debts written off il &5 12 BR 763 — 763
Write back of inventories FEzEE (22,535) - (22,535)
Write off of property, plant W HEEE R
and equipment 3R 1% W 8H 70 - 70

*

Others included property leasing income.

* HtBEWERERA -
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(ii)

Geographical Segment

The Group’s business operates in three main geographical
areas. The Group has properties invested in all these
geographical The People’s Republic of China,
excluding Hong Kong, is a major market for the segment of

areas.
sales of watches.

In presenting information on the basis of geographical
segments, segment revenue is based on the geographical
location of customers, segment assets and capital
expenditure are based on the geographical location of the
assets.

Details of the segment information by geographical segment

87 5 ¥k 2R Bl 5

NEER (E)

(i) WENE
AEBEBRFTER=ZAHELE - KE
ERZEHESERENFE -FEARH
HNE (FTEREB) DERHEEIBEZEE

i e

RMWBESEIFNERE  2ERELUE
FezBEME 2HEEERERNRAIAL
DEEEZHBRERE -

RWEDE 20 BERFROT -

are as follows:

2009 2008
—BEAE —EENE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Segment revenue FEWE
The People’s Republic of China, excluding FEARHLNEH -

Hong Kong FTEEESB 520,569 468,863
Hong Kong B8 97,358 5,602
Switzerland Bt 405 438
Others* Hith* 481 386

618,813 475,289
2009 2008
—gErE —2ENE
Carrying Carrying
amount of amount of
segment segment
assets Capital assets Capital
DEEE expenditure THREE expenditure
BIRRE{E EXRHX W ERE BEAMX
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FAETT FAETT
The People’s Republic of REARAEMNE -
China, excluding TrEEES
Hong Kong 285,316 17,819 274,354 12,842
Hong Kong &8 122,411 3,820 113,210 2
Switzerland Bt 54,100 2,906 50,368 855
461,827 24,545 437,932 13,699

* Others included U.S.A..

* HtBEXE -
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7. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at

(@)

(b)

Finance costs

after charging/(crediting):

B 752 i 8

(a) B ESAAK

BRBAEFENR, GFA)UT&E

2009 2008
—EBEAE —EEN\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
Loan notes: NEE:
Interest payable EARE 25 37
Amortisation of premium BB EEE = 876
Total interest expense on financial liabilities JFEBEBEBRAABEEENSH
not at fair value through profit or loss EEFMEAENANE X HESE 25 913
Staff costs (b) 8IRR
2009 2008
—EEAE —EENF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Salaries, wages and other benefits (including #£ - IEREMERN (BEEEH
directors’ fee and emoluments (Note 9)) RS (B:19)) 67,408 59,849
Retirement benefits scheme contribution, net R{KEF T2 HE K E K
of forfeited contribution of HK$Nil Rz EHREBT
(2008: HK$Nil) (ZEENF TER) 408 369
67,816 60,218




7.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)

(c) Other items

87 5 ¥k 2R Bl 5

7. BREEANEN (5)

(c) Hfth1AB

2009 2008
—EBhE —EENEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Rental receivable from investment BREWEEWESIHNR

properties less direct B % 3 t1146,0005% T

outgoings of HK$146,000 (ZZZE\F : 119,000/ 7T )

(2008: HK$119,000) (2,887) (1,340)
Net exchange loss [N E 1B F4E 244 1,240
Auditors’ remuneration BB &

Audit services %8R 845 883

Other services H fth B 7 250 448
Depreciation TE 14,299 7,571
Amortisation for prepaid lease payments HEREMNREEHE 71 111
Bad debts written off b Eichey 1 763
Write back of inventories* FE &M@ (17,209) (22,535)
Operating lease rentals in respect of HEMFERE

rented premises: HEHRS :

Minimum lease payments RIKBAEFRE 69,272 37,734
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses BHREABRAZEFERK 389,520 277,198
* The write back of inventories made for the year arose due to * ERBE-_ZEZENF=ZA=1+—HLEFE

the sale of the obsolete stock during the year ended 31st
March 2009. The selling price of the obsolete stock is greater
than the estimated net realisable value in previous years.
Therefore, write back of inventories HK$17,209,000 was made

during the year (2008: HK$22,535,000).

These amounts were included in the cost of sales.

OTHER INCOME/(EXPENSES), NET

AHERHETE BRFEELEFEZR
B RmETE2EEERNBEFE 2 (A5
TRRFE RAFEFEZED
17,209,000 7T (= & & /\ % : 22,535,000
BT e

ZEREBERNHEEMK -

8. Hfbhyzs (&H)  BH

2009 2008

—BEAE —ETNF

HK$’000 HK$°000

F#E T FET

Write off of other payables H i FE {3 BR S B 88 1,521 -
Loss on liquidation of subsidiaries (Note 30) B A AR ZEE (F730) - (348)
Write off of property, plant and equipment MEE Y  HERRE - (70)
Others Hth 69 (70)

1,590 (488)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

871 5 ¥k 2R Bit 5

HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

(i) Directors’ remuneration

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND INDIVIDUALS WITH

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to Section 161

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:

9. EEMERESMEAL

(i) =52
REEZEBQAGKAFICIEMEECESE
MEmT :

2009
—EEAE

Employer’s
contribution
Allowances to retirement

and other benefit
Directors’ Basic benefits scheme
fees  salaries p=4:\ 93 BHREFRE Total
ESEe EXHe Hw\EHN BEEHEX st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
FETT FETT FETT FETT FETT
(Note)
(KzE)
Executive Directors BITESE
Eav Yin w1z 230 1,931 3,315 - 5,476
Eav Ming Keong, Kinson = A 230 1,004 1,653 12 2,899
Au Shiu Leung, Alex BER 230 2,083 239 12 2,564
Independent Non-executive MBI FHITESE
Directors
Lai Si Ming ¥8 2 8 230 - - - 230
Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline TEHEF 230 - - - 230
Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent AFER 230 - - - 230
1,380 5,018 5,207 24 11,629




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 4R 2R Bt 5E

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND INDIVIDUALS WITH 9.

HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(i) Directors’ remuneration (Continued)

ESHERREMEAL (8])

) =Z=ESBH= (F)

ST

2008

Employer’s
contribution

Allowances to retirement

and other benefit
Directors’ Basic benefits scheme
fees  salaries EMR BRAREFE Total
EEnE EBEXFS HiEH BEEMR st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
(Note)
(BtzE)
Executive Directors BITESE
Eav Yin Bz 210 1,813 2,505 — 4,528
Eav Ming Keong, Kinson 5 BA 58 210 936 1,433 12 2,591
Au Shiu Leung, Alex BER 210 1,964 266 12 2,452
Independent Non-executive BIIFHITESE
Directors
Lai Si Ming %8 B 8 210 — — - 210
Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline FHEF 210 - - - 210
Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent ZERE 210 - - - 210
1,260 4,713 4,204 24 10,201
MEE: FR- RDRHBESE AT X 12,508,000

Note: During the year, the Company paid HK$2,508,000 (2008:
HK$2,280,000) for directors’ accommodation which is
included in allowances and other benefits.

B (ZEZ)\F :2,280,00087T) + B
RERAEMBENRIIE-

@



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND INDIVIDUALS WITH 9 EFHERESHEATL (8)
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(i) Individuals with highest emoluments i) E=HEAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three AN BESHFATH =N (ZZEENE:
(2008: three) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed EN)EECHMERMF)RE -HMEW
in Note 9()). The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of N(ZEZENE BRMU)ATERZHEL
the other two (2008: two) individuals are as follows: W -
2009 2008
—BBAE —EENE
HK$°000 HK$°000
FETT FET
Basic salaries, allowances and other benefits BEAFE 2UHRHEMER 3,115 2,185
Performance related incentive payments RIEEE A 3,067 2,330
Employer’s contribution to retirement benefit scheme 3 ¢k 18 Rl 5t 218 = #t = 12 22
Compensation for loss of office BEE (B — 231
b3
i‘ 6,194 4,768
S
§ The emoluments of the two (2008: two) individuals with the ZMAU(CEENFE MU)BREHFALZ
% highest emoluments are within the following bands: e FTIEE :
©
3
£ Number of individuals
A
70|71 2009 2008

ZETAF ZEENF

HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 jT — 2,000,0005% 7T 1 1
HK$3,000,001-HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 jt — 3,500,000 JT - 1
HK$4,500,001-HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 Jt — 5,000,000 JT 1 -

2 2

Asia Commercial Holdings Limited 5 i i 2% 4 A 4 ]
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT EaRsEN ek
2009 2008
—EEAE —EENE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHEIT FET

Current: BOHA :

Hong Kong BB = -
Outside Hong Kong EBUNME 3,019 4,689
3,019 4,689

On 26th June 2008, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
the Revenue Bill 2008 which reduced the corporate profits tax
rate from 17.5% to 16.5% effective from the year of assessment
2008/09. Therefore, Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at a rate
of 16.5% (2008: 17.5%) of the estimated assessable profit for the
year. No Hong Kong Profits Tax is provided because the
assessable profits generated during the year are set off by the
accumulated tax losses brought forward from previous years.

Taxation for overseas subsidiary companies is provided at the
appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant
countries.

On 16th March 2007, the People’s Republic of China promulgated
the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise Income
Tax (the “New Law”) by Order 63 of the President of the People’s
Republic of China. On 6th December 2007, the State Council of
the PRC issued Implementation Regulations of the New Law.
Under the New Law and Implementation Regulations, PRC
Enterprise Income Tax rate was changed to 25% from 1st
January 2008 onwards.

RZBENERNAZ+AB BEBLLEEB
(2008F M AKRBIER) EFEFEA=-ZZN
ZEZTARBNFEERE BLARNESHBE
H17.5%FA M E16.5% c At EEMNEHRHIH
AEENGTERTEANRBF165% (=T
NE 175%)sTE - AR AN FEEMNERBEF
HEOUAFEAEBCRAFEBEBERE RHITE
BEBFESHELRBE-

NG PNCPE T RS
ERf -

REZZEZELF=ZA+AB HEARENER
BHEARANBEIESHESREEMPEAR
HMBEREAERETHEMND  RZZFEL
E+ZAARNBHTEEBRBEMETEL - RIE
HEPIREBTERN  PEARKANBEEFRSE
BREH-ZENF-A—-BRHBERH25% -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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10.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT 10. BOWEERZFETH (@)

(Continued)

The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit in the

FEERBEXHENRRGS RERNEFY

consolidated income statement as follows: BRANT :
2009 2008
—E¥AE —EENE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Profit before taxation R B A% R 42,710 65,998
Notional tax on profit before taxation, B EBRZRNEESZINEAB =
calculated at the tax rates applicable to STENBRBAIER BB
profits in the countries concerned 10,853 21,430
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses ERB EFRENB 2 EeHEeE 483 6,404
Tax effect of non-taxable income ERBLTAERB 2B AZHETE (13,433) (71,851)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not AEBRZRERABEERE 2R ELE
recognised 4,978 48,923
Tax effect of utilisation of previously BRAABINBEEEZHBEEE
unrecognised tax losses - (36)
Others Hh 138 (181)
Actual tax expenses ERHELH 3,019 4,689




11.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE 1. SERAL2SRMBISZEAZ (ﬁ},‘é‘)/ﬁ;‘ iill
COMPANY
The consolidated (loss)/profit attributable to the equity holders of REREAQATARODEBEEAZES (BR), JEA
the Company includes a loss of HK$13,476,000 (2008: FER —"BEBAXLAABBERR 2
HK$109,206,000) which has been dealt with in the financial 13,476,000 T 2 B B (Z & & N\ &F:
statements of the Company. 109,206,000 7T ) °
Reconciliation of the above amount to the Company’s (loss)/profit FMFEEAQATERZ (BR), SEFEE:
for the year:
2009 2008
—EBTAE —EENE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEIT FET
Amount of loss attributable to equity RADB M EBRRER
shareholders dealt with in the Company’s BERRAIFEA
financial statements ZEiE (13,476) (109,206)
Final dividends from subsidiaries attributable FARAERKEREMBLAT 2
to the profits of the previous financial year, RERE(DHRBEIVBREE
approved and paid during the year $BRF) - 257,568

Company’s (loss)/profit for the year (Note 28) RATERZ (BFR),HBF (#iF2s) (13,476) 148,362




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 5 ¥R 2% Bff 5
12. DIVIDENDS 12. B8
(a) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (a) ENIRATARMISEAGBERRFEZ
Company attributable to the year [ 3=
2009 2008
—E¥hE —EENE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHETT FET
No interim dividend declared and paid RETHRESH KR
(2008: 1 HK cent per share) —EE)N\EFE  FR1EAWL) - 6,007
Final dividend proposed after the balance HEAZRBRKEZRERE
sheet date of 1 HK cent per share BR1EA
(2008: 1 HK cent per share) —EE)N\EFE  FR1EAWL) 6,007 6,007
6,007 12,014
At a board meeting held on 13th July 2009, the directors R-ZBFNFLA+=RETzEEE L
proposed a final dividend of 1 HK cent per share for the BREERRBEZE-_TTAF=HA=+—
ﬁ year ended 31st March 2009. This proposed dividend is not AEEEz28RIBUMZRBRE - Z i
8 reflected as dividend payable in these financial statements, EKRETEEZEUBERRZEFREF
[aV)
= but will be reflected as an appropriation of retained earnings FMm-EEeEEE_ZT-—ZTE=A
5] for the year ending 31st March 2010. ES+-—HALFEZREBARNR -
o
T
3
E (b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (b) BiRMAFPRASIBRMBISEARNRKEEIE
Company attributable to the previous year, approved and BRIRBRGSERLEFEZERS
7475 paid during the year
2009 2008
—EBAE —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Final dividend in respect of the previous tOBEEZ2RERE
financial year, approved and paid during REAFEBBRIKES
the year, of 1 HK cent per share (2008: Nil B RR1EA
HK cent per share) (ZEENF - SRZEAWN) 6,007 -

Asia Commercial Holdings Limited 5 i i 2% 4 A 4 ]



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 5 3R 2% Bft 5
13. EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. 8RR
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) BREKRERR
The calculation of basic earnings per share attributable to FEREALATROEEACERERZR
the equity shareholders of the Company is based on the TRBUTEHIETE
following data:
2009 2008
—EBEAE —EENE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Profit for the year attributable to the equity HEREAEFTS &R
shareholders of the Company for the RBRAQPARMBDEEA
purpose of basic earnings per share 2 7 39,691 61,309

(b)

Number of shares

k3 B B
2009 2008

“EBEAE —ZINF

Weighted average number of ordinary shares R=A=+—H 2 EZBRK

at 31st March hnREF g 600,695,128 539,837,497
Diluted earnings per share (b) BREFERR
Diluted earnings per share equals to the basic earnings per HREIHATEEEELEER BE
share as there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares REBERANBERSRELRF -

outstanding for both years presented.

@
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. A% - EBVRER

(@) The Group (a) A£H
Furniture Leasehold Machinery
Land and fixtures improve- and
buildings and fittings ments  equipment Motor
Buildings T FERE HEmE B vehicles Total
L ES RigF RRE )& Rk RE @t
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
As at 1st April 2007 R-ZEZ2tFMA—H
Cost A& 17,196 5,034 1,148 18,667 10,974 308 58,327
Accumulated depreciation BRIt iFE (5,683) (258) (1,049)  (13,979) (9,015) (308)  (30,292)
Net book value BREFE 11,513 4,776 99 4,688 1,959 - 23,035
Year ended 31st March BEZ-Z2ZNE=A
2008 =+—-HIEFE
Opening net book value HMAOEmERE 11,513 4,776 99 4,688 1,959 - 23,035
Translation differences BREEHE - 979 4 180 146 - 1,309
Additions wNE - — 374 10,022 3,303 - 13,699
Release on liquidation of RIBLREE
subsidiaries 6] - - - - (44) - (44)
Write off 1 85 - - (16) (28) (26) - (70)
Reclassification to ENAEZR
investment properties REME
(Note 16) (Kt7t16) (6,557) - - - - - (6,557)
Depreciation charge TESH (588) (197) (64) (5,296) (1,426) - (7,571)
Closing net book value HAREEEE 4,368 5,558 397 9,566 3,912 - 23,801
As at 31st March 2008 R-ZBENE=ZA
=+—H
Cost BARE 8,967 6,095 1,505 27,972 14,244 308 59,091
Accumulated depreciation 2iifE (4,599) (537) (1,108) (18,406) (10,332) (308) (35,290)
Net book value REFE 4,368 5,558 397 9,566 3,912 - 23,801
Year ended 31st March BE-_ZETh&E=A
2009 =S+-HLEE
Opening net book value HMAOEmER 4,368 5,558 397 9,566 3,912 - 23,801
Translation differences BREEZHE - (753) - 180 (73) - (646)
Additions RE - - 1,516 17,200 4,002 1,737 24,545
Reclassification to BN EE
investment properties REYE
(Note 16) (Ht5%16) (89) - - - - - (89)
Depreciation charge TEXH (150) (354) (242) (10,916) (2,319) (318) (14,299)
Closing net book value HAREEEE 4,129 4,451 1,671 16,030 5,612 1,419 33,312
As at 31st March 2009 R-ZBEAFZA
=+-H
Cost B E 4,855 5,250 3,022 42,936 17,556 2,045 75,664
Accumulated depreciation 2 I E (726) (799) (1,351)  (26,906) (11,944) (626) (42,352
Net book value BREFE 4,129 4,451 1,671 16,030 5,612 1,419 33,312




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

(b)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-
line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land 2% or over the
remaining terms of
the leases, if shorter

Buildings 2-4%
Furniture, fixtures and fittings 15-20%
Leasehold improvements 5-50%
Machinery and equipment 20-50%
Motor vehicles 20%

During the year ended 31st March 2009, certain building
has been reclassified as investment properties. The
reclassification was a result of the commencement of leases
of properties. The Group’s properties outside Hong Kong
with carrying value of HK$Nil (2008: HK$91,000) are
registered under the name of other persons in trust for the
Group.

The analysis of the net book value of land and buildings is
as follows:

87 5 ¥k 2R Bl 5

14. W% - BRERRE (F)

(b)

(c)

@

ME -BBERRBUEBEERTIIF R
BiTE

HEL 2% HEHANBTER
(UBEER%E)

BT 2-4%

RE  REREE 15-20%

HEWMELEE 5-50%

HEERRE 20-50%

RE 20%

R-ZBBERE=ZA=Z+—-BLEEER &
FHEEFEEFIEAREME -TH
FEDEMERBEBAR - AEE LR
BRI EREESBL(ZSENEFE:
91,0008 L) 2 METTHEEREBFFE
AZHMBATETER-

THREBFIREAFEINMOT

The Group
xEEH
2009 2008
—EEAE —ZTENE
HK$°000 HK$°000
FETT FET
Buildings ¥
In Hong Kong REB
Long-term leases REHEE 1,215 1,308
Outside Hong Kong HEUS
Long-term leases REHEE 2,914 3,060
4,129 4,368
Land and Buildings T RiEF
Outside Hong Kong HEUS
Freehold KR ERE 4,451 5,558
8,580 9,926

At 31st March 2009, certain buildings amounting to
HK$1,192,000 (2008: HK$1,283,000) were pledged as
securities for bank loans as detailed in Note 32.

R-ZEBEAF=A=+—-R BTEHE
1,192,000/ 7T (= F % J\ F : 1,283,000
TIETRERTERER FHEHRK
32 e
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(@) During the year ended 31st March 2009, some prepaid
lease payments amounting to HK$242,000 (2008:
HK$4,073,000) had been reclassified as investment
properties. The reclassification was a result of the
commencement of lease of properties.

(b) At 31st March 2009, certain leasehold lands amounting to
HK$551,000 (2008: HK$556,000) were pledged as securities
for bank loans as detailed in Note 32.

15. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 15. B FARRIA
The Group
xEH
2009 2008
—EBEBAE —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Balance at 1st April HAMWA—B 248 4,654 8,838
Reclassified to investment properties ENBEEREYE
(Note 16) (K1aE16) (242) (4,073)
Amortisation e (71) (1171)
Balance at 31st March R=ZB=+—Bz&& 4,341 4,654
The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise: AEBEHERAREGE:
The Group
FEH
2009 2008
—EBTAE —EENE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Long-term leases in Hong Kong REBZREEE 1,099 1,105
Long-term land use rights in PRC RABZREALHERARE 3,242 3,549
4,341 4,654
Analysis for reporting purposes as: HRAREBN 2D :
Current portion TENIB D 67 4
Non-current portion FERB B 4,274 4,583
4,341 4,654

(@ R-ZZFZAF=ZA=+-HBLFEAR &
T 18 & 78 13 K 1]242,000 T (Z 2 FE N
F 140730008 T )EEH D ERAREY
X ENSBENEAYERKEAERY -

by R=ZZFEBhRhF=ZRA=+—H

ETEE

551,000/ jt (=& & )\ & : 556,000/8 7T )
MEELHAERTERER FBHER

FfzE32 o
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. &M
The Group
TEE
2009 2008
—EEAE —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FET

At valuation HESE

As at 1st April REA—H 60,579 14,005

Translation differences REER (1,983) 2,620

Reclassifications EHoE

— from property, plant and equipment and — B BMERRKRE
prepaid lease payments REEBESRE
(Note 14 and 15) (BtaF14815) 331 10,630
— fair value change upon date of transfer — REZRANAREET 1,858 31,320
(Decrease)/increase in fair value in the DREREEREZRDH (BD)
consolidated income statement i (4,500) 2,004

As at 31st March WN=B=+—H 56,285 60,579

At 31st March 2009, certain investment properties amounting to RZEBEEHARFE=ZA=Z+—-—HBH ETEHE

HK$39,600,000 (2008: HK$14,800,000) were pledged as securities 39,600,0007& 5t (ZZ = )\ & : 14,800,000/8 T )

for bank loans as detailed in Note 32. NIREYERERITERIER  FHHNME

32 ¢
The carrying amount of investment properties held by the Group NREBR -_ZEENER_ZEENE=Z/A=+— @
at 31st March 2009 and 2008 comprises: BelREYECEEESE
The Group
X&EH
2009 2008
—EEAE —ZEENEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHETT FET

In Hong Kong under long-term leases EEBERREEE 40,650 45,150

Outside Hong Kong: EEBUN:

Medium-term leases FHEE 3,183 973
Freehold KR ERE 12,452 14,456
56,285 60,579

Note: BiaE -

(@) During the year ended 31st March 2009, some buildings and prepaid (@ R-ZEZEAF=ZA=+—HLEER BHTE
lease payments have been reclassified as investment properties. The FURBERNRBCEFT I EARREYE -
reclassification was a result of the commencement of lease of EHMPBEDEYERBEERR - AEEBULR
properties. The Group’s properties outside Hong Kong with valuation EB LM EEE2,189,0008 T (ZTT/\F :
of HK$2,189,000 (2008: HK$Nil) are registered under the name of EET)ZVENHEERAERSTIAZHEMBA

other persons in trust for the Group. TETER
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16.

17.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b)  The Group’s investment properties are held for rental purposes under
operating leases were revalued by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited,
a firm of independent valuer who holds a recognised and relevant
professional qualification and has recent experience in the location
and category of property being revalued at 31st March 2009 on an
open market basis calculated by reference to net rental income
allowing for reversionary income potential.

() For the year ended 31st March 2009, up to the date when the
buildings and prepaid lease payments became investment properties,
the difference at that date between the carrying amount of the
properties and their fair value of amount approximately HK$1,858,000
(2008: HK$31,320,000) is recognised directly to equity in revaluation
reserve. As at 31st March 2009, the valuation loss on investment
properties amounting to HK$4,500,000 (2008: gain of HK$2,004,000)
are recognised in the consolidated income statement.

INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES

16. IREWME (8)

(b) AEEZREVEDNFFEREHEZHEARE
VYHBEERLIRABEXERUARET Y H 1
BRENKBR B IYUERMETDIZBRERTE
RABAR-ZZEAF=ZA=t-BHREFES
BARBAEZED ZARTEFELRIBT S
EEBM-

() BE-ZTAF=A=1+-BLEE BEZE#Z
FREEBENEARAREYE R WE2
REEEFES A AERZA ZZ%1,858,000
BT (ZZZT\F :31,320,00058 7T ) EEBERR
EEANEGRE - R_ZZAF=A=1+—
B REYWEEERFIB4,500,00087T (ZFFN
1 g 3£2,004,0008 T ) R A NE RTERR -

17. RMEASZiERm

The Company

AT
2009 2008
—EBTAE —ETNEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHETT FET
Unlisted shares, at cost EEMRMG  BRA 320,837 320,837
Impairment loss recognised ERARMEESE (320,837) (320,837)

In prior years, due to the poor operating performance of the
relevant subsidiaries, the carrying amount had been impaired by
approximately HK$320,837,000 through the recognition of
impairment losses. After considering the poor operating
performance of the relevant subsidiaries and the downturn of the
economy resulting from global financial crisis, the directors are of
the opinion that investment cost of these subsidiaries would not
have significant value to the Group and such amount has already
been fully written off in prior years, and impairment loss should
not be reversed.

RBEFE REBMBARKERRARE:
2 7 5 AR [ {8 7 5208 (B % 49320,837,0007% T °
ZEHEMNBLARERRRNERZREHME
BoIBWEERREZ BESRA WEQIAZ
REBABTERFEBAETREANERER
ZERERBEFECHZHME  BESE
A& HBE -
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17. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 17. KRB S ZiE= (8)

AAAR-BBAEZA=S+—AZEENE
ARRENT :

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31st
March 2009 are as follows:

Proportion of nominal
Paid up issued value of issued share
ordinary share capital/registered

capital held by the

Place of incorporation
or establishment or capital/ registered

Name of subsidiary registration/operation capital Company Principal activities
MBAS &M HEMSAINE S BYERTEER FATABESBRTRE S EEEH
BB, /HEMEF EMEFEEZEIH
Directly Indirectly
Hi 4
AC (Overseas) Limited British Virgin Islands HK$10,000 100% - Investment holding
REEZRS 10,0003 7T 100% — REEZER
Asia Commercial Company, Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100% Investment holding & watch
Limited trading
BEHERRDA &% 10,0003 7T — 100% REZRR
Juvenia Montres S.A. Switzerland SFr.1,875,000 — 100% Assembling and marketing of
gold and jewellery watches
¥t 1,875,000% + £ BB - 100% R EH
BEERRM(EESZERAT People’s Republic of HK$60,000,000 — 100% Watch trading
China*
REARAME" 60,000,000 7T - 100% BHRES
Time City (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 - 100% Watch trading
BEERM (BB)ERLT &% 3,000,000 7T - 100% BRES
Juvenia (Hong Kong) Company Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 — 100% Brand development & watch
Limited trading
BE (FEB)BRAA B 5,000,0005& 7T — 100% mEERR
Accord Watch & Jewellery Hong Kong HK$3,500,100 - 100% Brand development & watch
(International) Limited trading
YEEHHE (AR ARQA & 3,500,100 7T — 100% mRERR
Asia Commercial Property British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100% - Property holding and
Holdings Limited Hong Kong investment
REELEE B8 EV 100% - MERAERRE
LBEBRERERAT People’s Republic of RMB600,000 — 100% Watch retailing and trading
China*
REARAME* AR%600,0007T - 100% BRTER
g5
Ming Biao Cheng Corporation British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100% Watch retailing and trading
REBRELEE 127 — 100% ERTER

=3
L
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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17.

18.

INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Registered under the laws of The People’s Republic of China as a
wholly foreign-owned enterprise.

# Registered under the laws of The People’s Republic of China as a
domestic enterprise.

The above list includes the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, materially affected the results of
the year or net assets of the Group. To give details of all other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
providing particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital outstanding at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES

17. REABIZiEE (4F)

* RETPEARANBERIAMAZENIEDRZE-

# RETPEARANBEZEZEIMABBEALE-

ESRB  LIMBLRANEIEXELFESE
BIAEEEEFRE HMEAEEMHEQF
ZHEBE-HHIEH BERRIR -

REXJVFRNEMAEE SHEXIREETM
HMAREEZEEER -

18. EEUR  (FEfT) i S 22 S K18

The Company

XAT
2009 2008
—EEAE —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F T FET
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE U B B A B R IE 1,020,527 1,022,758
Impairment loss recognised EEA2 (737,154) (737,154)
283,373 285,604

The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest
bearing and repayable on demand.

The carrying amount of the amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries as
at 31st March 2009 approximated their fair value.

As at 31st March 2009, the amounts due from subsidiaries were
unsecured and repayable on demand. Except for an amount of
approximately HK$19,199,000 (2008: HK$19,545,000) with interest
charged at prevailing prime rate less 2%, the remaining balance
were non-interest bearing.

The carrying amount had been impaired approximately by
HK$737,154,000 through the recognition of impairment losses in
the year ended 31st March 2008. After considering the poor
operating performance of the relevant subsidiaries, the directors
are of the opinion that impairment losses recognised in previous
years should not be reversed during the year ended 31st March
20009.

EHHEAARERREN RERANER
B E o

R-ZEZEANF=ZA=Z1+—HB ERHEBLIAXNK
BEAERKFLYEARERSEE - RAHED
19,199,0005& jt (=& & J\F : 19,545,000/ 7T )
BREBREENRH2%TENE N HepF0E
ABRE -

BE-ZEZN\FE=ZB=+—-BLEE KEE
B ¥ 52 % {8 #9737,154,00058 7t ° Z [E 18 B I B
RAZRERERRB EERE BE=-Z
ENEZA=1+-BLFEE BEFEEIZ
BEEEE T EEE -
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AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 19. OB EZIZE
The Group
TEE
2009 2008
—EEAE —EBEENE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEIT FET
Investments in RER
Unlisted equity securities in Hong Kong EBELTRAES — 3,785
Club debentures &S 2,734 2,734
Impairment loss recognised ERRAZEHERE (554) (4,339)
2,180 2,180

The above investments in unlisted equity securities are measured
at cost less impairment at each balance sheet date. In prior
years, the carrying amounts of investments in unlisted equity
securities had been written down to nil through the recognition of
impairment After considering the poor operating
performance of these investee companies, the directors are of
the view that no impairment should be reversed.

losses.

The write off of available-for-sale investment in unlisted equity
securities in Hong Kong made during the year was due to the
poor operating performance of these investee companies in prior
years.

The club debentures are measured at fair value. Fair value of the
investment has been determined by reference to the bid price
quoted in an active market. No impairment is provided for the
years ended 2009 and 2008.

REFEER LARFETREABSRERK
FAMBHEFE REBEFE - FLHTRAR
ZREZRAECERRIABEEEREES -
ZRZERREQNFAZRELERRE ES
RE WEHESRBR -

HRZEERELANRBEFELERARE
HRFEAMBETHEEZRERETBIELDR
REEHIKE -

SESEARBHE - HREZAAREDS
RS L EEMEBEE -BE-ZZTAER=
ZEENFUHFESEMFEHBERE -

INVENTORIES 20. #§&
Inventories in the balance sheets comprise: EEBBRAZTFERRE:
The Group
FEH
2009 2008
—ETAE —EETNEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Watches B8R
Raw materials B AR 23,453 34,013
Finished goods g 251,228 167,300
274,681 201,313
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21. TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 21. E SIS - HhEWES - BE2RH
PREPAYMENTS NER]
The Group allows credit period of ranging from cash on delivery AEBHRTESERERFHIAERREORZ
to 90 days to its trade receivables. The aging analysis of trade FEH REEH BEEAEEEZERE
receivables of HK$20,322,000 (2008: HK$30,960,000) which are FAZE S EWIRT20,322,0008 T (ZEFEN
included in the Group’s trade receivables at the balance sheet % 30,960,000/ 7T ) Z BRER D AT AT :
date is as follows:
The Group The Company
AEH AAT
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EBEBAE —EENF —EEAE —EETNF
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FETT FET FETT FET
Trade receivables BHEWERER
Up to 90 days BN H# Z90H 20,119 30,658 - —
91 to 180 days 91&%180H 53 55 - —
Over 180 days 180H U 150 247 - -
20,322 30,960 - -
Allowance for doubtful debts & BR 5 {& (8) (8) = -
20,314 30,952 - -
Other receivables H fth FE W BR X 3,080 3,573 7 1
Loans and receivables EFREWER 23,394 34,525 7 1
Deposits and prepayments RERBEARIE 18,063 16,384 116 109
41,457 50,909 123 110

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, other receivables,
deposits and prepayments at 31st March 2009 approximated
their fair value.

The carrying amounts of 76% (2008: 75%) of the Group’s trade
receivables are denominated in Renminbi.

All of the trade receivables are expected to be recovered within
one year.

RIZBEZAF=ZA=Z+-HZEZBWRER
HtbBURE BERBEMREZREAERR
REMRE -

AEBESEWRERZIH(ZEE )\ F:
75% ) ZBREEUARESIE-

FEESBRURRBARIR-—FRkD -



NOTES TO THE

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

(@)

Impairment of trade receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is
satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which
case the loss

impairment is written off against trade

receivables directly (see Note 2(g)(i)).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 4R 2R Bt 5E

21. SAMUERR - HithBUIRR - RERTE
f3R1E (48)

() BAMUKRRERA
FEWBRAR < BEB B LB EIRTE BRI
REBERELWERBEZAEEBY - E

ZERT FHESEEEREZEBUWERN
s (R MEE2(9)()) °

FEERRBELZ2Y (BERBEREES

the vyear, including both specific and collective loss BIEM)WOT :
components, is as follows:
The Group
xEH
2009 2008
—EBEAE —EENF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FET
As at 1st April RMUA—H 8 4,261
Uncollectible amounts written off R R 8 = (4,253)
As at 31st March KR=B=+—H 8 8

At 31st March 2009, the Group’s trade receivables of HK$Nil
(2008: HK$Nil) were individually determined to be impaired.
A specific allowance for doubtful debts approximately
HK$1,000 (2008: HK$763,000) was recognised. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

R-ZBBERE=ZA=+—B x&EE2¥E
ZREUERTEBT(ZEENE 2B
T)ENREEALREBE CEIRAZHE
ERBRBHEHNBE1,0008T (ZZEENE:
763,000 7T ) o 7N & B 3 M 5 S AL ER I
BEMEKARS -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ¥5 #R %% Bfd 5E

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 21. SEIREDSR -HibEUWER - 2Kk
PREPAYMENTS (Continued) fdkmE (48)

(b) Trade receivables that are not impaired (b) EFAZSAMURR
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The aging analysis of trade receivables that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are as
follows:

REBNAEERREREZEZEWE
HIREBEDMANT ¢

The Group
FEH

2009 2008
—EEAE —EENE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Neither past due nor impaired 3B H SR E 20,119 30,658
Less than 90 days past due B H 4 7A90R 53 55
Over 90 days past due B HA B 3B90R 142 239
195 294
20,314 30,952

Trade receivables are due within 90 days from the date of
billings. Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

B2 REWIRNZHRE A BB REH -
HMEARIBRECEZRBUERBELER
SUBEHRARRBEZEFA -

BAHEERE2ESRUERESEBY
BEFER 2EFFEAKEZEERE
R -REBEILR ERBERL ZE
EHRBAFLHERE DEREEESR
YEEAES BEKRNERET2HY
B REBYERLSEEHRTHEEMER

—_
AR °
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22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

87 5 ¥k 2R Bl 5

22 HEeERRESEN

The Group The Company
xEE AT
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EEAE —EENF —EBEAE —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FET FETT FET
Cash at bank and on hand S$TEXEFERSE 49,571 58,288 410 16,014
Short-term bank deposits BHIRITER - 36,208 - 1,496
Cash and cash equivalents RESEEEEBEERE
in the consolidated HZERERERITE
balance sheet and the HNESRRESEEY
consolidated cash flow
statement 49,571 94,496 410 17,510
The Group The Company
FEHE EATF
2009 2008 2009 2008
—TEAE —EENF —E¥AE —EENF
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET FETT FET
Hong Kong dollars BT 21,584 46,621 341 1,426
United States dollars E5T 37 16,014 31 16,054
Renminbi AR 26,951 27,870 - -
Others Hi 999 3,991 38 30
49,571 94,496 410 17,510

The effective annual interest rate on short-term bank deposits
ranged from 1.67% to 2.24% (2008: 1.40% to 5.74%); these
deposits have an average maturity from overnight up to 4 days
(2008: overnight up to one month).

EHRETERZEBRENEZRN FI167%E

224% (ZZEEBNF 1 1.40%E5.74%) : Z 5 &

R2FPHAMAAREELNR (Z2ENF 5

BRRE—MEA)-

@
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23. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED
CHARGES

Included in trade payables, other payables and accrued charges
are trade payables of HK$28,775,000 (2008: HK$40,104,000), the
aging analysis of which at the balance sheet date is as follows:

23. SAREMKRR HihERIRRRESTER

REHEBR HFABEZEMARYK  HEAERN
REFERRAZE S E R 28,775,000% T
(=2 % J\F : 40,104,000 7T ) 2 B # 5 47 &0
T

The Group The Company
AEHE AT
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EEAE —EENF —EBEAE —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FET F#E T FET
Trade payables BEEMER
Up to 90 days BN H# Z90H 27,848 39,791 - -
91 to 180 days 91&%180H 283 — - —
Over 180 days 180H U 644 313 - —
28,775 40,104 - -
Other payables and HthEFERAR
accrued charges Est&E A 24,282 22,888 2,410 2,278
Deposits received =Rl & & 1,981 2,003 - -
Other tax payable H th P& {3 B 18 43,760 38,910 - -
Financial liabilities measured LU R At E =2
at amortised cost TRBeE 98,798 103,905 2,410 2,278

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables, other
payables and accrued charges at 31st March 2009 approximated
their fair value.

The carrying amounts of trade payables of the Group are mainly
denominated in Renminbi.

All of the other trade payables and other payables are expected
to be settled or recognised as income within one year or are
repayable on demand.

R-ZZEZAF=ZRA=1+—-H FKEZEZE
TRX -HEBENRRREFERA 2 REESR
HELQARERSE -

AREZESBEARRZREETEUARS
sHE -

FERMESENRARAEMEMSRERTR
—FAREAEIB/BA  NREREE -
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INCOME TAX PAYABLE IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE
SHEET

(@)

Income tax payable in the consolidated balance sheet

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24, 58

(@)
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BEGRRAZESPISH

REEERBERCEARBHRAR:

represents:
The Group
XEEH
2009 2008
—EEBAE —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Balance at 1st April AMEB—Bz#&t
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax — HECEMREBH 1,500 1,078
Translation difference BREER 33 364
Provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax REEPRRTEFRSHES
for the year 3,019 4,682
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid ENPECERED (4,271) (4,624)
Balance at 31st March R=A=+—Bz#&8 281 1,500
Deferred tax assets not recognised (b) RERZEEMREEE

The Group has allowable tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
approximately HK$364,688,000 (2008: HK$335,000,000)
which are mainly arisen prior to the capital restructuring in
1997, that are available for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these
losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

Withholding tax

Pursuant to the new PRC Corporate Income Tax Law which
took effect from 1st January 2008, a 5% or 10% withholding
tax was levied on dividends declared to foreign enterprise
investors from the PRC effective from 1st January 2008. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty arrangement between the PRC and the jurisdiction of
the foreign enterprise investors. For the Group, the
applicable rate is 5%. On 22nd February 2008, Caishui
(2008) No. 1 was promulgated by the PRC tax authorities to
specify that dividends declared and remitted out of the PRC
from the retained earnings as at 31st December 2007
determined based on the relevant PRC tax laws and
regulations are exempted from the withholding tax. No
deferred tax liabilities have been recognised, as the Company
controls the dividend policy of the subsidiaries of the Group
in PRC and it has been determined that it is probable that
the profits earned by the Group’s PRC subsidiaries for the
period from 1st January 2008 to 31st March 2009 will not
be distributed in the foreseeable future.

AEEBEERELE T EERREEEY
£364,688,000i8 T TER— NN tFEE
AEAAELE (ZZZ N\ F 335,000,000
Bx) ATAREBEEBEBEEENLATRR
FERBER - BRRICER T aE/EHTER
HMUEBANEHERIELEHEEE -

ik

BREEB-—ZENF-—A—BRBERNGTEH
FEEMSHRE BRANELEREES
R B PEH R EBUKE5%H10%TEME
H-ZEENFE-A—-BRENR -
NECEREEZMBRALIEERZEERR
BEEZHATRREENBRHH - K
EEERHERAY R-ZZZTNE_A
—+ = H - B %R R A B B(2008)
15 - REE-ZZtF+=-A=+—8H
WREZNERRELEPERENZBRER
BEHBTEBRELAEIEANEETER S
ENR -BRERQAFEZFHAPEN T LA
WEEREX MIEBEFTATERTR
ZARBAEEFEFARAR_ZZNEF
—B—HE=ZEZhRE=A=+—HHH
BRENETEANETOR RYERIAE
EREEE-
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25. LOAN NOTES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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The Group and the Company

FEEREFATF
2009 2008
—BTAE —EENE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Swiss Francs 550,000 (2008: Swiss Francs ¥ £ 3% BB550,0001p (ZZEZENEF
11,800,000) 7/8% Loan Notes (the “Notes”) Bs £ 3£ 8611,800,000) —E—FF
due 2010, at par BHEB78NERERE
(TE#E ] REE 2,907 62,636
Translation difference REEZH (12) (702)
2,895 61,934
Premium on redemption at 17.375% of BI7T3T5%BEREEEZ
principal amount mE - 10,757
Accrued interest EFRE 28 821
Premium paid during the year FREFEE - (10,757)
Interest payable write back during the year FREREESTE - 277)
Interest paid during the year FREFFE (25) (541)
Redeemed during the year FREER - (59,027)
2,898 2,910

Pursuant to the original note agreement dated 31st January 1994,
holders of the Notes had the right at any time on or before 8th
February 2000 to convert all or some of the Notes into shares of
the Company at the conversion price of HK$8.6 per share,
subject to adjustment. Interest on the Notes was waived for a
period of five years with effect from 23rd February 1996 to and
including 22nd February 2001. The rate at which interest is
charged on the Notes is 7/8% per annum for a period of nine
years with effect from 23rd February 2001. Interest is accrued
over the revised duration of the Notes so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of charge for each accounting period.

The Company has the right, having given not less than 30 days
and not more than 60 days’ notice to the financial advisor in
respect of the Notes, to redeem all, but not some only, of the
Notes at par, together with interest accrued up to the date of
redemption if the closing price of the Company’s shares listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, converted into US$
at the prevailing exchange rate, is at least 130% of the
conversion price for 30 consecutive dealing days.

BE-NANOE-A=Z+-BZRRZ2EEH
B RBERAAGRR-ZEZZEF_ANAH
ZHBEREEReEBTZBRE (WTFRAE)SE
2RABNERBEERBEAQXARMD - REB
—hWAARFZRZ+=ZRRBRE-ZEZE-F_A
“t+tZBR (BEZBI)IZAFARNANE BB
ZNEAZZEE-—F-_RA=-+=ZHEFNFR
ZEBRIBY% - REBEEBIRZBHEFREF
B LUEESEASHHBARN ELARBREZES
BA-

WARABBRBEEEBERZIFTERLIA 2
TE(RESARERBREAZAR)EE=TH
XEAHYEBBRKREZI130%HU L AIRAATHE
BREONZEBEZUBEREEFRPR=+RER
ZRARNTHZBHNZERT  REE (BERTE
BEEAZANR)ERME (MEEHMD) B -
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LOAN NOTES (Continued)

There is also an option granted to the holders of the Notes to
cause the Company to redeem in US$ at a fixed exchange rate
of SFr.1.00 = US$0.67933 any Notes on 23rd February 2008 at a
redemption price of 117.375% of its principal amount together
with interest accrued up to the date of redemption. The Company
had redeemed Notes amounted to Swiss Francs 11,250,000 on
23rd February 2008. The remaining Notes amounted to Swiss
Francs 550,000 will mature in year 2010 and had been re-
classified from non-current liabilities to current liabilities at the
year ended 31st March 2009.

The directors considered that the carrying amount of the Notes
at 31st March 2009 approximated their fair value.

SHARE CAPITAL

25.

26.
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SRERE (&)

ZEBEATER —EHRER FXAAANR=
EENF B+ =HREELREE117.375%
ZEOEBERFZERER ZFE » LiR1.00
B A R067933E T 2B EERFEZET
BEEMEH AQARAER=-_ZFEENFE_-A
—t+=HEEZEHEE11,250,000% t EBEHE
£ T550,000 T 2 EEER - —ZF 3
Ho ot RZFFAF=ZA=+-BLEE
ERECEF BRI RBEBERBER

EERB R-EENEF=ZA=+-H E8H
ZIREEEBEQIREMES -

A% 7

The Group and the Company

EEEREAT
Number of
shares Value
Bir&E BiE
’000 HK$’000
FIKR FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each FRO10BTZ2EBR
Authorised: EERA
At 1st April 2008 and 31st March 2009 R-ZZEENFEOAE-—BRK
—EERNE=ZA=+—H 1,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:
At 1st April 2007 R-ZEZE+LEWNA—H 333,719 33,372
Issue of new shares under open offer (Note) BEABRERITHRD (A1) 266,976 26,698
At 31st March 2008 R-BENFE=A=+—H 600,695 60,070
At 1st April 2008 and 31st March 2009 R-ZZZENFEOE—BR
—EENE=A=+—H 600,695 60,070
Note: et

On 25th September 2007, the Company allotted and issued a total of
266,975,612 new shares of HK$0.10 each at a price of HK$0.40 per offer
share (“Offer Share”) as a result of open offer on the basis of four Offer
Shares for every five existing shares held by the qualifying shareholders of
the Company. All offer shares issued rank pari passu with the then existing
shares in all aspects.

RZZBZBLFAAZ+TER  AAAESRFEMH0.40
78 JU B 3 R % 17 #251266,975,6128% & BR0.1078 T 2 3
B (BERDDERIHBEZER BEEREXD
RAAERRRESALIRRARDERBORBER
BB BRTHNBRERNERFECHRTROESTE
HERRSMA -
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27.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

2002 Share Option Scheme

On 20th September 2002, the shareholders of the Company
approved the adoption of a new share option scheme (the “2002
Share Option Scheme”). The purpose of the 2002 Share Option
Scheme is to encourage qualifying grantees to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the
benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.
Qualifying grantees of the 2002 Share Option Scheme means (i)
any employee or any business-related consultant, agent,
representative or advisor of the Company or any subsidiary or
any affiliate; or (ii) any supplier, agent or consultant who provide
goods or services to the Company or any subsidiary or any
affiliate; or (iii) any customer of the Company or any subsidiary
or any affiliate; or (iv) any business ally or joint venture partner of
the Company or any subsidiary or any affiliate.

Previously, the maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the 2002 Share
Option Scheme (and under any other scheme of the Company)
shall not in aggregate exceed 10 per cent. of the shares in issue
as at the date of the adoption of the 2002 Share Option Scheme
(the “Scheme Mandate Limit”) provided that the Company may at
any time as the Board of Directors of the Company may think fit
seek approval from its shareholders to refresh the Scheme
Mandate Limit, save that the maximum number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the 2002 Share Option Scheme (and under any other scheme of
the Company) shall not exceed 10 per cent. of the shares in
issue as at the date of approval by the shareholders of the
Company (including those outstanding, cancelled and lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the 2002 Share Option Scheme or
any other scheme of the Company or exercised options under
the said scheme) shall not be counted for the purpose of
calculating the limit as refreshed. Notwithstanding aforesaid in
this paragraph, the maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised under the 2002 Share Option Scheme (and under
any other scheme or the Company) shall not exceed 30 per cent.
of the Shares in issue from time to time.

Refreshment of 2002 Share Option Scheme mandate limit (the
“Refreshment”) and amendment of rules of 2002 Share Option
Scheme (the “Amendment”) has been approved at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 26th August 2008.
Details of the Refreshment and the Amendment are contained in
the circular to shareholders dated 1st August 2008. After the
adoption of the Refreshment and the Amendment, as at the date
of the annual report, a total of 60,069,512 shares (representing
approximately 10 per cent. of the existing issued share capital of
the Company) are available for issue under the 2002 Share
Option Scheme.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

2002 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The total
exercise of the options granted to each individual under the 2002
Share Option Scheme and any other scheme (including both
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period must

number of shares issued and to be issued upon

not exceed 1 per cent. of the total number of shares in issue.

The period within which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Board of Directors of the Company in its
absolute discretion, save that no option may be exercised later
than 10 years from the date on which the option is granted.
Subject to the provisions of the 2002 Share Option Scheme, the
Board may in its absolute discretion when offering the grant of
an option impose any conditions in relation thereto in addition to
those set forth in the 2002 Share Option Scheme as it may think
fit (to be stated in the letter containing the offer or the grant of
the option) including (without prejudice to the generality of the
foregoing)
satisfactory performance.

continuing eligibility criteria conditions and the
However the 2002 Share Option
Scheme itself does not specify any minimum holding period for
which an option must be held before it can be exercised.

The offer of grant of share options may be accepted within 14
days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal value
of HK$1.00 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the
share options granted is determined by the Board of Directors,
and shall not exceed a period of ten years after the date of
grant.

The subscription price in respect of any particular option under
the 2002 Share Option Scheme shall be such price as the Board
may be its absolute discretion determine at the time of grant of
the relevant option (and shall be stated in the letter containing
the offer of the grant of the option) but the subscription price
shall not less than whichever is the highest of: (a) the nominal
value of a share; (b) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of the
Board resolution approving the grant of options; and (c) the
average of the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of the Board resolution approving
the grant of options.

The 2002 Share Option Scheme will expire on 19th September
2012.

No option was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the
year ended 31st March 2009 and as at 31st March 2009, there
were no outstanding option granted under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme.
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28. RESERVES 28. fEis
The Group &
Share Revaluation Exchange Capital Contributed Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve surplus losses Total
BpriaE EEHEE ERMGE BREEE SARGR RithsiE EEk ]
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
(Note (a)) (Note (b)) (Note (c)) (Note (d)) (Note (e)
(Ktit(a)) (KtaE®)) (Mitec)) (Btit(a)) (Ktzt(e))
Balance at 1st April R-ZZBZELENA

2007 —B#E& 84 242 345 252,381 17,524 (184,065) 86,511
Exchange differences  ENHIEB A A

on translation of B mKkZ

financial statements BREER

of overseas =5

subsidiaries — — 16,014 — — — 16,014
Profit for the year REE R - - - - — 61,309 61,309
Issue of shares BITR A

(Note 26) (Ktz#26) 80,092 — — — — — 80,092
Revaluation on BEfHYE

properties (Ktat16(c))

(Note 16(c)) - 31,320 - - — - 31,320
Share issue expenses ROBRTZ2ER (2,185) - — - — — (2,185)
Dividend paid (Note 12) B KR E (K:212) - - - - - (6,007) (6,007)
Balance at 31st March R=-ZTENFE=A

2008 =+ —B#&& 77,991 31,562 16,359 252,381 17,524 (128,763) 267,054
Balance at 1st April R-ZZBZENENA

2008 — R &g 77,991 31,562 16,359 252,381 17,524 (128,763) 267,054
Exchange differences  ESNHIEB A 8

on translation of B mKkZ

financial statements BREEY

of overseas =5

subsidiaries - - (5,234) - - - (5,234)
Profit for the year KEEREF - - - - - 39,691 39,691
Revaluation on BEHWE

properties (Ktat16(c))

(Note 16(c)) - 1,858 - - - - 1,858
Dividend paid (Note 12) Bt IR S (ff712) - - - - - (6,007) (6,007)
Balance at 31st March RZ-ZTENF=A

2009 =+—B#&& 77,991 33,420 11,125 252,381 17,524 (95,079) 297,362
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28. RESERVES (Continued) 28. LI (8)
The Company i /AN |
Share Contributed Retained
premium surplus profits Total
B 153 i3 (B L DN REBEEF Fk ]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
(Note (a)) (Note (e))
(Kit(a)) (Htit(e))
Balance at 1st April 2007 R=—ZFEZtFMA —H
Fegrs 84 17,524 — 17,608
Share issue expenses BT 2ER (2,185) — — (2,185)
Profit for the year REEZRF — — 148,362 148,362
Issue of shares (Note 26) 31T (f1:%26) 80,092 — — 80,092
Dividend paid 2NRE - - (6,007) (6,007)
Balance at 31st March R-ZBEENFE=A=+—H
2008 Fe3=3 77,991 17,524 142,355 237,870
Balance at 1st April 2008 R=ZZZFN\FWMA —H
P 77,991 17,524 142,355 237,870
Loss for the year RXEEER - - (13,476) (13,476)
Dividend paid ENRE - - (6,007) (6,007)
Balance at 31st March R-ZZEZhF=BA=+—H
2009 iEer 77,991 17,524 122,872 218,387
Note: Kzt -

(@)

()

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is governed by
Section 40 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) (the
“Companies Act”).

Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve has been set up and is dealt with the
revaluation on properties (Note 16(c))
properties in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for
land and buildings in Note 2(e).

reclassified to investment

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in Note 2(p).

Capital reserve
The capital reserve was set up upon debt restructuring which will be

used for the purpose of repurchase of issued and fully paid ordinary
share capital.

(@) BRHEE
B EERARBE-AN—"FERELALESE
401 (BT RBEDER -

(b) EBfHEHE
ENRERRAEIEZEREYWE (MaH16(c)) W
MEBSHFEEMES > LR B M T F2e) B H
Rt HREFTNEHRREE -

() ERRE
ELEEERESNEBUBRRAMELEN
FEEREZE ZRERBEMITF20)EMEAN
B HRERE -

(d) BARE

REABEREBEALRR L BARBEROE 3
TREREBERAK -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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28. RESERVES (Continued)

The Company (Continued)

@

)

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the amount
transferred from the capital account due to the capital reduction
effective on 28th March 2007. The balance of contributed surplus
account may be utilised in the future in accordance with the Bye-
Laws and the Companies Act, including distribution to the
shareholders subject to compliance with the relevant statutory
requirements on making distributions in the Companies Act.

Distributability of reserves

In accordance with Section 40 of the Companies Act 1981, the share
premium account of the Company is distributable to the shareholders
of the Company in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

At 31st March 2009, the aggregate amount of reserves available for
distribution to equity holders of the Company was approximately
HK$218,387,000 (2008: HK$237,870,000) subject to the restriction on
the share premium account as stated above. During the year, the
directors proposed a final dividend of 1 HK cent per share (2008: 1
HK cent per share), amounting to approximately HK$6,007,000 (2008:
HK$6,007,000). This dividend has not been recognised as a liability
at the balance sheet date.

28. fikf& (8)

KA (&)

(e)

BABER

FEBZHABHAREHBERAR-ZEL
FZAZTNRERMERBERARz2EHE -
BABBRRZEBRTRARRELTAIR L
AEBA BEARRELDSIK  HREMER
TAETFLARAEEBEI RN EERE °

Ao B

REBREZ1BIFEQREBLK  A2AZRHD
BERITUMRAINROBEA2ETFA2AR
Ho

R-ZEZAF=ZA=+—HB BLEXMIZR
HBHRERMR THIBFAATDREZEFA
2B HEEE N 5218,387,0008 T (ZEENE :
237,870,000 7T) c FRH  EERBRBESR1B
W(ZEBEBENE SRIBILWZRAEREN
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REEH ZREANERAERGE -
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29. RECONCILIATION OF PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION TO NET 20, BiISTIMNARESER DTN
CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES ¥ 0§
2009 2008
—EBAE —EENEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Profit before taxation R Bt A % 42,710 65,998
Adjustments for: FE
Valuation losses/(gains) on investment properties REYEZHEBE, (KFE) 4,500 (2,004)
Write back of inventories FEZ#ERE (17,209) (22,535)
Write off of property, plant and equipment s % - HEERRE — 70
Write off of other payable 1 88 HL i FE (T BR X (1,521) -
Bad debts written off 1 85 4% IR 1 763
Loss on liquidation of subsidiaries MBARZERER — 348
Amortisation of premium on redemption of BEEEREBEZEEEHE
loan notes = 876
Other interest income HaF B WA (251) (972)
Interest income from short-term bank deposits REEHRITFEFRZAEEWA (23) (3,294)
Interest expenses FEEH 25 37
Depreciation e 14,299 7,571
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments HEFEN KRB 7 111
Operating profit before changes in working EEESEHA
capital 2 R R R 42,602 46,969
Increase in inventories FEEm (56,241) (87,834)
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables, other BESEWERA - HMEWERR &S
receivables, deposits and prepayments REMRERD S (4EM) 10,020 (11,297)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables, other BSEMNERR  EMEMRARES
payables and accrued charges B CRD) Em (5,282) 21,686
Decrease in rental received in advance ERESED (75) (75)
Cash used in operations EEFMBACES (8,976) (30,551)
Overseas taxation paid BEHZEBHIFE (4,271) (4,624)

Net cash used in operating activities BARKEER2EEFE (13,247) (35,1795)
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30. NET CASH FLOW FROM LIQUIDATION OF SUBSIDAIRIES 30. IRHELSSRE 2B LT
During the year ended 31st March 2008, two subsidiaries R-ZZEZENF=ZA=Z+—BLFER WAR
incorporated in the People’s Republic of China and one FEARAMBAAR IR —BREETMA
subsidiary incorporated in Taiwan were voluntarily wound up. The YeHMBARCEREEL ZEMBATNE
net assets of these subsidiaries at the date of liquidation were as BHHFEEOT
follows:
The Group
xEH
2009 2008
—EEBAE —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Net assets disposed of: HEZFEE:
Fixed assets EEE = 44
Other receivables and deposits HMEREREES = 283
Other payables and accrual Hitt B R RETTER = (18)
Exchange reserve R = 39
Loss on liquidation of subsidiaries MEARBREFMEEZER - 348
Satisfied by: TRARX:
Cash consideration received EWEERE = —




31.

NOTES TO THE

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The following is a summary of the significant transactions with
related parties during the year under review and as at year end.

(@) Summary of expense items

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 4R 2R Bt 5E

31. BREEALTRA

TIHREARFARRFRERHEEALZE
KRS -

(a) BAEBNEE

2009 2008
—BTAE —EENEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Underwriting fee for open offer paid to BRAFBREREERR (AKX
a company beneficially owned AERER)EHEE2ZAF
by a substantial shareholder who is XRNBHER (ML)
also a director of the Company (Note) - 908

Note: The amount was paid during last year.
(b) Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,

including amounts paid to the Company’s directors and
certain of highest paid individuals as disclosed in Note 9, is

Kt ZREERLEFEXN-
(b) FTEERASHM
FEBIREBAEFH BEIXGTFA

RAEBRETERSH AT (M FRTIK
B)ZFORNT

as follows:
2009 2008
—EBEBAE —EENEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F T FET
Short-term employee benefits HHEEREA 17,823 14,738
Termination benefits BEELE A - 231
17,823 14,969

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see Note
7(0)).

e BBEEHFAEIRANRE M
7(b)) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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32.

33.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31st March 2009, the Group’s general banking facilities
were secured by certain leasehold properties and prepaid lease
payments with carrying value of HK$1,192,000 (2008:
HK$1,283,000) and HK$551,000 (2008: HK$556,000) respectively
as well as certain investment properties at valuation of
HK$39,600,000 (2008: HK$14,800,000).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

So far as the Directors are aware, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries is engaged in any litigation or arbitration or
claims which is, in the opinion of the Directors, of material
importance and no litigation or claims which is, in the opinion of
the Directors, of material importance is known to the Directors to
be pending or threatened by or against the Company or any of
its subsidiaries.

32.

33.

EERY

RZZBBAFZA=Z+—-B XEEERTZ
—RIBITEEUREED 551,192,000/ 7T (=
ZZ\F 11,283,000 7T ) K%551,000% T (=F
TN\F 5560008 T)cE THENEREES
8 % 518 & % T £ {839,600,00058 5T (ZEZE N
£ 1 14,800,000/8 ) 2 REWE LR -

xnafd

BESHRA ARAREEAHELIRES
REERABERZEMFR  AKEE -
MAESHA  ARAHEETAME LR FE
MATHIERBEEIARREBERRBERKR
ZHAHRE-



34.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

As lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was HK$3,078,000
(2008: HK$1,498,000). At 31st March 2009, the properties held
have committed tenants for lease terms from 0.3 to 2.6 years
(2008: 0.5 to 4 years), whose tenancy agreements include paying
security deposits.

The Group had total future minimum lease receivables under the
non-cancellable operating leases with the tenants falling due as
follows:

34.

87} 5 ¥k 2R B 5

RENERH
fERBEE

FRAE2WEEE KR A A3,078,000% T (=
TE\F 114980008 T) R-ZBEZhFE=ZA
=+-B FEEzZYXEeEHEHERAENF0.3
FE26F (ZEENF 1 0524F )2 Y H
HEBRAEITERREE -

REEERATHE 2 ELERY 2&EEHEKR
REEENEBWERR ZBBENT

2009 2008

—EBEAE —EENF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FETT FET

Within one year R—FR 2,255 2,569
In the second to fifth years inclusive RE_ZFLF (BFEEEMEF) 3,053 5,253
5,308 7,822

As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office properties and retail outlets
under operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties are
negotiated for terms ranging from 0.25 to 3.75 years (2008: 0.16
to 4.08 years). Certain rentals for the use of retails outlets are
determined by reference to the revenue of the relevant outlets for
the year and the rentals for certain retails outlets will be
escalated by a fixed percentage per annum.

The operating lease rentals of certain retail outlets are based on
the higher of a minimum guaranteed rental or sales level based
rental. The minimum guaranteed rental has been used to arrive at
the following commitments.

The Group had total future minimum lease payments under the

ERWIAE

FEBRBEKEHERHHEEETHAIENHE
REEH KEBAZYWEEAEHRB0255F
BIF (ZEENF 016F F4.08F ) HF =
ERNEHEEUEZFENRARRE S B
ETZEENHEHESSUEENFRER -

ETEEN2REHEHSDUBRERRAS
HHEREE UBRSERE)FE - AL
DEEERBHEEFE -

BREFTHEzEEB0Y  AEEERREKE

non-cancellable operating leases falling due as follows: HARNERRZBEOT :
2009 2008
—EEAE —EENF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Within one year R—FR 58,823 44,971
In the second to fifth years inclusive RE-ZETF (BFEEEME) 66,092 114,614
124,915 159,585

The Company had no operating lease arrangements at 31st
March 2009 and 2008.

ERAFR-ZEBENFR-ZZEENF=ZA=+—
B EELHERH-
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35.

36.

37.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) scheme
for all Hong Kong eligible employees. The assets of the MPF
scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of trustees.

The retirement benefit cost for MPF scheme charged to the
consolidated income statement represents contributions payable
to the MPF scheme by the Group at rates specified in the rules
of the MPF scheme.

Employees employed in the PRC are members of the state-
sponsored pension scheme operated by the PRC government.
The Group is required to contribute a certain percentage of their
payroll to the pension scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the pension scheme is to
make the required contribution under the scheme.

The amount of unvested benefits utilised by the Group to reduce
contributions is HK$Nil for the year (2008: HK$Nil). The amount
of unvested benefits available for future reduction of employer’s
contribution as at 31st March 2009 is approximately HK$1,840
(2008: HK$3,000).

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

As 31st March 2009, the Company had given corporate
guarantee to a bank in connection with banking facilities granted
to the Group amounting to HK$40,000,000 (2008: HK$5,000,000).
The maximum liability of the Company under the guarantee
issued amounting to HK$40,000,000 and the facilities drawn
down by the Company of HK$Nil (2008: HK$Nil). The directors
considered that no recognition was required because the fair
value of such guarantee was insignificant and that the directors
did not consider it probable that a claim would be made against
the Company under the guarantee.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform
with current year’s presentation.

35.

36.

37.

iR fil g il 51 21

KEBRFEEBEERBEIRY —BERHM
PEE(RBESDHE -ZRBEEHECEE
BAEECEEIREA AZKEAUESR

REE o
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ZERKEFERPERFERE - FEEERE
ITHES2ETHH  BBRAFEFELHER - F
EEEZERRFEP2EFT EHRFEZR
EAfEH#K -

RE RSB S AR R 2 R BB R B
TET(CEENF BB -R-FENF
SE=+-B THAZHUBEEIMRZAR
B R % 401,840/ 7 (ZBEN\F 13,0008 7T) °

MERESLH

RZBEZAEFE=ZA=Z1+—-B ' XD2IAHRNE
40,000,000 T (= & & )\ £ : 5,000,000/% 7t )
ZHRITBEMBBRTELEER A2 ARER
THES A& 540,000,000 TR A AFEE
AEETRME(ZZEENE T8 T) - EER
B HARZSERZAANBLTER HAHE
EHER MESETARARNQAABETHERIE
EERERME -

LE®mEHP

ETHERBFCENIBEUATELAFEZEY
AR e



FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

hEMBERE

RESULTS
Year ended 31st March
HE=A=+—BHLEE
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
“EERF ZEERF ZEELFE ZEENF ZBEAE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FETT FET FET FET FET
(restated)
(REH)
Turnover =X 255,650 330,233 369,376 475,289 618,813
Profit/(loss) before taxation BBAER S (EE) 5,028 7,435 (47,283) 65,998 42,710
Income tax g (933) (2,249) 2,511) (4,689) (3,019)
Profit/(loss) for the year EEHEN (BE) 4,095 5,186 (49,794) 61,309 39,691
Attributable to FEBR
Equity holders of the Company KAFRBEBEE A 4,386 5,414 (49,543) 61,309 39,691
Minority interests DERRER (291) (228) (251) — —
4,095 5,186 (49,794) 61,309 39,691
Basic earnings/(loss) per share BREXRER (EE) 1.31¢ 1.62¢ (10.43¢) 11.36¢ 5.11¢
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
EEHaE
As at 31st March
R=EA=+—8H
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
“ETEF -BTXREF -FTTLF —TT\F —BELE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FETT
(restated)
(REH)
Total assets BmEE 303,831 308,627 271,984 437,932 461,827
Total liabilities BeE 134,171 138,657 152,101 110,808 104,395
Net Assets EEFE 169,660 169,970 119,883 327,124 357,432
Equity attributable to equity FERAEAATRSG
holders of the Company BEAZER 169,129 169,649 119,883 327,124 357,432
Minority interests LPERRER 531 321 — — -
Total Equity 1R % 169,660 169,970 119,883 327,124 357,432

Certain comparative figures have been restated to reflect the adoption

of the new and revised HKFRS.

ETHRBELCEINURRRAFER BT 2
ERMBRELER -
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PROPERTIES HELD

REBFEBZME

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
REME

Name/Location

B e

Flat A on 16th Floor, Flat E on
14th Floor, Flat A-H on 12th Floor
Flat A-B, E-G on 13th Floor

Hong Kong Industrial Building
444-452 Des Voeux Road West

Hong Kong
BB EEIEA444-4525%
BERIEKRE

16 AR - 148 EZ ~ 12 BA-HER
131 A-BRE-GE

Car Parking Space No. 8 on
1st Floor, No. 8 on 2nd Floor
No. 8 on 4th Floor, Avalon
No. 19 Tai Hang Road

Hong Kong

BEBRUBE195

M = FT4E85R

28 K

11828 FE L

Unit F, 24th Floor
Guangdong Gitic Plaza
Annex Office Tower A
339 Huan Shi Dong Road East
Dangshan District
Guangzhou

the PRC

AN T

R IL & R R EK3393%
[ R B B K AN 12
24KFE

Unit E, 8th Floor

Apong Building

No. 585 Ligling Road
Xuhui District

Shanghai

the PRC

FEARAEM

LB RE B2 K58555
FEAESIREE

Part of CH-2304
La-Chaux-de-Fonds

Switzerland

Wt

CH-2304 La-Chaux-de-Fonds#B {3

*

Saleable area

HEEE

BY THE GROUP

Type
B

Industrial premises

IRUF

Car parking

FES

Office premises

Residential building

Factory

&

Approximate
gross floor area

BMOBEEE

2,022 sgq.m.”

2,022 75 K*

N/A

118 sgq.m.

118 5 3K

160 sg.m.

160%F 75 3K

2,362 sqg.m.

2,362 75 K

Group’s interest

FEEZES

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Lease term

Long-term lease

RHHAE

Long-term lease

RHHAE

Medium-term
lease

RHEE

Long-term Lease

REHAE

Freehold

KM
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